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Grапtтhоrпtоп

Independent Auditor's Report

То the Shateholdets and Supemisory Boatd of
the Joint Stock Company .6Uzbek Leasing Intemational А.О.r'

Ао о(ю lGrarrt Тhоrrrtопл
Республика Узбекистан,,
'l00128, Тачiкент,

ул. Абая. 1А

Тел.: +998 (71) 230-45-43
Факс: +998 (71) 244-47-43
Еmаil:ашdi@чz,ф,соптrl

(Grапt тhоrfitопл До LLG
1А, АЬау Stг.,

Tashkent, 1 00 1 28,

Republic of Uzbekistan

Tel.: +998 (71) 230-45-43
Fах: +99в (7 1) 244_47 _43

W: чфшt w,grаrtШhФппltФrl,шz

Орiпiоп

ýИе hаvе audited thе financial Statements ofJoint-Stock Соmрапу "Uzbek Leasing International А.о.,,
феtеiпаftс tefeшed to as the "соmрапу'), чrhiсh consist оf йе statement of fiпйсiаl position as at З1,
December 2024 апd tlre statement of рtогrt ot loss and othet comprehensive income, tbe statement of
changes in equity and the statement of саsh flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial
ýtatements, including а Summar7 of signiГrcant accounting policies-

In out opinion, йе accompanying financial statements pfesent fafuly in all matetial fespects the financial
position of the ComPany aS at 31 Decembe r 2024 and its financial petformance and cash flows fot the year
then ended in ассоrdапсе'йth International Financial Repotting Sйпdаrds (ItrRSф.

Basis for орiпiоп

ýие conducted out audit in accordance wiй Intetnational standatds on Auditing (IsAs). out tesponsibilities
under those standards are furthet desctibed in the Auditot's Responsibilities fot the Audit of the Financial
statements section оf out fepoft. \0ие ate independent of йе company in accotdance йth the Intetnational
EtЫcs Standatds Boatd fot Accountants' Code of Ethics оf Ptofessional Accountants (IESBA Code)
togethш йй the ethical tequkements that are relevant to our audit оf the Гrпапсiаl statbments in the
Republic of uzbeНstan, and we hаче fulfilled ouf othef ethical tesponsibilities in accotdance with йеsе
requitements and йе IESBA code. ý7е believe that the audit ечidБпсе we hаче oыained is sufficient and
approptiate to provide а basis fot out opinion.

aurllty попаgФпi tузiоm
l9o000l

.alndщ.finilnв

меmЬr of Grant Тhоrлtсrп International

Е
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Otber iпfоrrпаtiоп

Management is rеsропsiЫе for other information. Оthш information includes infotmation contained in the
annual fepoft but does not include the financial statements and our audit report about it,

Our чiечr оf the financial statements does not аррlу to оЙеr information, and we will not provide
conclusion wiЙ assurance of any form regarding this infotmation.

In а чiецz оf conducting our audit оf Йе financial statements, our fesponsibility is to review other
infotmation and consider whether there are significant disctepancies beмeen other information and the
financial statements, of ouf knowledge gained duting йе audit and whethet other infotmation contains
other signifi cant distortion.

If, based on Йe,work vre hаче carried out, we conclude йаt other information contains а matefial
misýtatement, we must fepoft this fact.

Respoпsibility of the Мапаgеmепt апd Tbose Charged uitb Corporate Gооеrпапсе for tbe
Fiпапсiаl statemeпts

Management is responsible for the preparation and faft presentation of financial statements in accordance
with IFRS and fоr such internal conttol system as malragement deterrnines is necessary to епаЫе the
ptepatation of Йе financial statements that is free from material misstatements, due to fraud of effofs,

In preparing the financial statements, management is rеsропsiЫе for assessing the ability of the Соmрапу to
continue as а going concefll, disclosing, as аррliсаЫе, mattefs relating to going concefn and using the going
concefn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Йе Company of to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Тhе management and those charged with govefnance are responsiЫe fot overseeing йе preparation of the
financial statements of the Соmрапу.

Auditor's re sp опsiЬ ility for auditing fiпапсiаl stateпxeпts

Our objectives afe to obtain rеаsопаЫе assufance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whеЙеt due to fraud ot ettot, and to issue an auditot's repoft that includes our
opinion, RеаsопаЫе аssurапсе is а Ыgh level of aýsufaflce but is not а glrafantee йаt an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs чrill always detect а material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements сап afise
from fraud of effot and are considered matefial if, individually or on the aggfegate, йеу could teasonably Ье
expected to influence Йе economic decisions оf users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part оf an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditin5 we apply
professional judgment to retain professional skepticism Йroughout the audit. In addition, urе perform the
following:

о identiф and assess the risks оf matetial misstatement of financial statements due to ftaud or error;
develop and conduct audit procedures in fesponse to these risks; we obtain audit evidence that is
sufГrcient and apptopriate to serve as а basis for expressing our opinion, Тhе risk оf non-detection of
material as а result оf unfait acts is hфеt than the tisk оf not detecting а signiГrcant distottion as а result
of an errot, since unfair actý mау include conspfuacy, ftaud, intentional omission, misteptesentation of
information ot actions bypassing the internal control system;

О get ап undetstanding of the intetnal control system that is televant to the audit, in otdet to develop audit
procedutes that ate appropdate for Йе circumstances, but not fоr the pulpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company's intetnal conttol system;
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. assess the proper nature of the accounting po[cies applied and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and the corresponding disclosure of information prepared Ьу management;

Aaditor's re sponsibility for aшditiпg fiпапсiаl statements (сопtiпuеd)

о make а conclusion about the legitimacy of management's use оf the assumption of business continuity,
and on the basis of Йе ohained audit evidence - the conclusion whether there is а significant
uncertainty in connection vrith events or conditions that may raise significant douЫs in the ability of the
Company to continue its business continuously, If we conclude that thшe is significant uncertainty, we
must dtaw attention to ouf disclosute in Йе financial statements, or, if such disclosute is inapptopriate,
modify out opinion. our conclusions ate based on йе audit evidence received before the date оf our
audit report. Hovzever, future events or conditions may lead to the Соmрапу losing йе ability to
continue its business cont-inuously;

. aSSeSS the Presentation of the financial statements in genetal, its structure and content, including
disclosure оf infotmation, as well as цzhethet Йе financial statements pfesent the undetýing operations
and events in а mannet Йat ensutes their tеliаЫе representation;

О obtain sufficient approptiate audit evidence telating to the financial infotmation оf the organization ot
activities within the Соmрапу in order to expfess an opinion on the financial statemefits. 'ý(i'е are
tesPonsible for thе management, conttol and conduct of thе Соmрапу's audit. ý7е remain fully
responsiЫe fоr our audit opinion

ýйе collaborate with pefsons rеsропsiЫе for corpotate govefnance, including, among other йings,
information on the planned scope and timing of the audit, as vzell as sigrrificant comments on the audit
results, including significant deficiencies in the intetnal control syýtem that uzе identiý, in the course оf the
audit.

ý7е also provide the Management and those tеsропsiые for cofpofate govefnaflce with а statement that we
hаvе compпed with all relevant ethical requirements regatding independence and informed these individuals
about all telationships and other issues that сап reasonably Ье considered to affect the independence of йе
auditor. And if it is required - on appropdate precautions.

From the mattefs communicated with those charged with govefnance, чrе detetmine йose mattefs that
were оf most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the Соmрапу for the cuffent period and
afe thetefofe the key audit matters. ýие describe these mattefs in our auditor's fepoft unless law oi
tegulation ptecludes public disclosure about the matter or whеп, in exttemely rate circumstances, ,ý/е

deternine that а matter should not Ье communicated in out fepoft because the advetse consequences оf
doing so would reasonably Ье expected to оuмеiф йе public interest benefits of such communication.

General directot Jamshid Katimov

Jaldrongit Tulyaganov

ihоrпtl

Audit managef

13 June 2025
Tashkent, UzbeНstan
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Fiпапсiаl statemаnts fоr the уеаr ended З1 DесеmЬеr 2024
Jsc "UZBEK LEAs//vG INтЕRNдтIоNдL д,о."

Statement оf financial position

Notes 3{ DесеmЬеr
2о24

UzS,k

31 DесеmЬеr
2023

UzS,k

31 DесеmЬеr
2024

USD,k

31 DесеmЬеr
2023

UsD,k
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Fiпапсе lease receivables
Equipment for leasing
Рrерауmепts to чепdоrs fоr
leasing equipment
Deferred iпсоmе tax asset

6 7,972,393 2,918,914
7 819,248,438 694,999,474
8 66,896,675 146,171,в27

9 10,471,525 159,235,367

23 9,185,895 6,869,030

12, 13 635,859,266 707,077,332
14 34,э96,142 55,517,025
15 8,568,72,| 29,625,о64

в17 226
63,407 53,79.|
5,178 11,313

810 12,324

711 532
Premises and equipment 10 ,t4,455,769 8,592,992 ,1,1,19 665
оthеr assets 11 88,409,136 61,868,538 6,843 4,788
TOTAL ASSETS 1,016,6з9,8з1 1,080,655,942 78,685 Ез,6з9
LlABlLlTlES
Воrrоwiпgs
Advances frоm lessees
Trade payables

49,213
2,662

663
3,1 39

54,725
4,297
2,293

786оthеr liabilities 16 4о,557,914 1о,156,497
TOTAL LlABlLlTlES 719,з8z,O+з 802,зz5,9t8 55,6z8 oz,tol
EQUlTY
Share capital 17
Additional paid in capital 17

,1,336

Retained 152 133,451
9,873

11,798 10,329

17,259,944
127,568,637

17,259,944
127,568,в37

1,336
9,873

TOTAL ЕQU!тY 297,25T,788 278,28о,о24 2з,оо7 21,5з9

Approved and signed on Ьеhаlf оГ the Company's management;

#*fiдffiь

icet

;02513 June

The поtеs оп pagesfrom 9 to 58 are ап iпtegral part оftlлеsеJiпапсiа! statemeпts.
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JSc "UZBEK LЕдS/NG lNтЕRNдтIоNдL д.о."
Fiпапсiаl stаtеmепts for the year епdеd 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Statement оf pfofit or loss and ойеr comprehensive income

Notes 2023 2024 2023
UzS,k USD,k USD,k

lnterest income оп leases ,l8 167,332,568 ,143,396,067 12,951 11,о98
lnterest expense оп leases ,l В (,l з,оэо,zsо) (g,zg+,B1 з) (l ,оsо) (zl g)
Net interest iпсоmе оп leases 1 53,682,3,t 8 134,101,254 ,l 

1 ,894 1 0,379

2024
UzS,k

(Рrочisiоп fоr) / Release of credit loss (631,724) (69,477) (48)

Net interest income on leases
аftеr provision оп expected credit 153,05о,594 134,о31,777 11,847 1о,375
losses
UIпеr lnterest ехрепSе 19 (86,507,367) (71,253,074) (6,695) (5,515)
оthеr ореrаtiпg iпсоmе 2о 19,1з1,412 12,о90,950 ' 1,4s1 936
Administrative and оthеr operating
expenSeS 21 (44,704,904) (41,028,311) (3,460) (3,.t75)

(Provision for) / Release of imраirmепt of 6, 11other assets (1,942) 56,967 (1) 4
Fоrеigп exchange (|osses) / gains, net 7,813,3о7 17,969,174 бо5 1,391

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME ТАХ 48,781,100 51.867.483 3.776 4.016

(4)

lncome tax ехрепsе 23 (7,170,336) (6,610,375) (555) (512)

PRoFlT FoR тнЕ YЕдR 41,610,764 45,257,108 3,221 3,504

Approved and sфеd on behalf of йе Company's management:

Мustаfа

|З Juпе 2025

[rttve ( )f ftсеr

8j]-:,/_*{qr-,;fЦ)

The поtеs оп pagesfrom 9 to 58 are ап iпtegral part оfthеsеfiпапсiаl statemeпts,
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JSc "UZBEK LEAS/NG INтЕRNдтIоNдL д.о."
Fiпапсiаl statements for the year ended 3 1 DесеmЬеr 2024

statement of cash flows

UZS.k USD'kД
OPERATING AGTlVlTlES:
lпtеrеst iпсоmе received оп lease
lnterest,paid

Other ореrаtiпg income received

Administrativeand оthеr operating
expenses paid
Staff costs paid
lпсоmе tax paid

167,332,568
(100,157,617)

19,131,412

(18,983,682)

(26,344,560)
(9,487,201)

12,951
(7,752)

1,4в1

(1,469)

(2,039)
(7з4)

2023

143,396,067
(80,547,887)

12,090,950

(,l7,834,357)

(23,198,078)
(6,892,126)

2023

1 1,098
(6,2u)

936

(1,380)

(1,795)
(533)

Cash flows from orrating
activities before changes iп
operating assets and liabilities

Net iпсrеаsе (dесrеаsе) in finance
lease receivables
Net (iпсгеаsе)/dесrеаsе in
equipment fоr leasing
Net decrease/(increase) in
prepayments made to vendoB fоr
leasing equipment
Net (iпсrеаsе/dесrеаsе iп оthеr
assets
Net iпсrеаsе/(dесrеаsе) in advance
received frоm lessees
Net iпсrеаsе in trade payables
Net (decrease)/increase iп other

3,1,490,920

(124,248,964)

79,274,952

148,76з,842

(28,932,526)

(21,120,883)

(21,056,343)
з0,401,417

2,438

(9,616)

6,1 зб

11,514

(2,239)

(1,635)

(1,630)
2,353

27,0,14,569

(52,343,876)

(123,979,994)

(83,1 95,1 30)

(46,1 97,1 87)

38,219,284

28,230,171
(209,950)

2,091

(4,051)

(9,596)

(6,439)

(3,576)

2,958

2,185
(16)ties

Е CASH FLOWS FRОМ
lNVEST|NG ACTlVlTlES;
Purchase of рrореф and
equipment

5,010,507 388 6,870,936 532
Acquisition of Right of use asset (1o,s73,2s4) (842) (4,96о,737) (зs4)

,391,928 185 (1,742,659) (1з5)

Net cash used in investino
activites - (3,470,849) (269) 167,540 13

Net cash used iп operating
(212,4в2,113)

The поtеs оп pagesfrom 9 to 58 are ап iпtegral part оfthеsеJiпапсiаl slatemeпts,

2024 2024
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JSc "UZBEK LЕдS/NG INтЕRNдтIоNдL д о "
Fiпапсiаl statements for the year ended З1 DесеmЬеr 2024

Statement оf cash flows (Continue)

cASH FRoM
FlNАNсlNG ACTIVITlES:
Dividends paid
Proceeds frоm borrowings

(22,633,000)
193,843,346

2024
USD,k

(1,752)
15,002

2023
UzS,k

(17,739,070)
420,039,80,|

(1,373)
32,510

1 12) 1

10,в22
Net cash from financing
activities (93,851,066) (7,265) ,l37,239,319

Effect of exchange rаtе changes оп cash
and cash equivalents
The effect of expected credit losses оп
cash and cash

NET (DECREASEy|NсREASE lN сASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS at the

7,813,307

(10,328)

5,053,479

17,9в9,174

(8,386)

,l,391

(1)

391 (57,094,466) (4,419)

2,918,9,14

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS at

Approved and signed on behalf of the company's management:

13 June

ti,1уlц g/.,,.,,;l*:,, 2irт[ a]i.lXY ?i:i.',:

-l_\yly l| ' \Ъ,\'?

l/ýъ
?/:ecutlve (Jttlcef

z025

The поtеs оп pages frоm 9 to 58 are ап iпtegral part of these fiпапсiаl statemeпts.

2024 2023

605

(1)

of

7,972,393 617 2,918,914



JSc "UZBEK LЕдslNG INтЕRNдтIоNдL д.о."
Nofes to the Fiпапсiаl sfatenents for the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements

lntroduction

These financial Statements оf Joint Stock Соmрапу "Uzbek Leasing Intemational А.О." (the
"соmрапу') hаvе been ptepared in accotdance vrith International Financial Reporting standards
(IFRSs) fot the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Соmрапу was incolpotated and domiciled in the Republic of UzbeНstan. The Соmрапу is а joint
stock соmрапу limited Ьу shates and was estabпshed on 20 Маrсh 1996 in accordance чzith the Dectee
оf the Cabinet of Ministers of UzbeНstan dated 5January 1995.

Тhе shareholders of the Соmрапу ate as follows:

3{ DесеmЬеr 3't December
2024 2023

National Bank for Foreign Economic activity of
Uzbekistan (National Bank of Uzbekistan - NBU)
Uzbek-Oman lnvestment Соmрапу LLC

45.5о/о

441%
10.4%

45.5о/о

44.1о/о

1о/%Berhad
Total 100% 100%

Priпcipal acti,l,)ity. Тhе Company's principal activity is ptoviding leases to entities йthin the Republic
оf UzbeНstan. Тhе Company had 65 employees as at 3l December 2о24 (}1Decembш ZоZз: вв
employees).

Reýstered addresS апd place of business, The Company's tegisteted addtess and рtiпфаl place of
business is: 88А, Amit Temut Street, Tashkent, 100084, Republic of UzbeНstan.

2 Operating environment of the Gоmрапу

Republic оf UzbeНstan. The UzbeНstan economY continues to displaY chatactetistics оf ап emerging
market, including but not limited to, а cuffency that is not freely convettible outside of the соuпtrуЪпJ
а low level оf liquidity rn 

_d9h 
and equity matkets. Also, the financial sectot in UzbeНstan is patticularly

impacted Ьу local political, legislative, fiscal and regulatory developments.

Economic stability in uzbeНstan is largely dependent upon йе effectiveness of economic measures
undgtaken Ьу the Govetnment of UzbeНstan, together йth other legal, tegulatory and political
developments, all of wЫсh ate beyond the Company's conttol.

Тhе Company's financial position and opetating tesults чzill continue to Ье affected Ьу future political
and economic developments in UzbeНstan including the application and intelpretation оf existing and
future lфslаtiоп and tax tegulations, uzhiсh gteatly impaci Uzbek financial markets and the ..oio-y
overall. Management is_taНng necesýary measufes to ensute sustainability оf йе Company's operations.
Howevef, the future effects of the current economic situation ate difficuit to predict, йd -u.r"g.ment'scuffent expectations and estimates could diffet frоm actual results.

uzbeНstan expedenced йе fоllойпg key econornic indicatots iп 2о24:

Inflation: 9.8О/о Q023: В.S7ф;

GDP gtowth:6.8О/о (202З: бО/ф;

Official exchange fates: 31 Decembet 2024: USD 1 = UZS 12,920.48 (31 Decembet 2о2з: USD 1 =UZS 12,ЗЗ8.77);

Refinancing tate оf the Centtal Bank of Uzbekistan ("cBU') - 1З,5О/о QО2З: 1,4.ОО/ф.
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3 Significant ассочпtiпg policies

Basis of preparation, These financial statements have been ptepared in accordance йth Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSф undet the historical cbst convention, as modified Ьу the initial
tecognition of financial insffuments based on fair чаluе. The pdncipal accounting policies 

"pplied 
in the

ptepatation of these financial Statements afe ýet out below. Тhеsе policies й"r." b."r-.onsistently
applied to all the periods ptesented, unless otherwise stated.

тhе pteparation of financial statements in confotmity ý/ith IFRs tequites the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exetcise its iudgment in the ptocess оf applying
the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving а Ыgher dеgrЪе of judgment ot соmрlЙф, oi
ateas чzhеtе assumptions and estimates ate significant to the financialstatements are disclosed in Note4.

Foreign curreпcy tfanslation, The functional curtency оf thе company, being the cuffency оf the
ptbary economic envitonment in which thе entity opefates, is the паtiЪп"i .rrrr.ri.y оf thе Republic of
UzbeНstan, UzbeНstan Soums ("UZS,). These financial Statements are presented in Uzbek Soums
("UZS") and United States Dollar (''USD').

Forcign cuffency monetaly assets and liabilities ate translated into the functional cuffency at the official
exchange fate оf the CBU at the end of thе respective reporting petiod. Foreip ехсhапgе gains and
loss_es tesulting from the settlement of ftansactions and from tйe-translatjon оf -о.r.tuф assets and
[abilities into thе functional cuffency at year_end official exchange tates of йе CBU are tecognized in
рrогrt or loss. Ttanslation at yeat-end fates does not apply to non-monetary items that ate measuted at
histotical cost.

At 31 December 2024 the principal rates оf exchange used fot translating foreign cuffency balances
чzete USD 1 = UZS 12,920.48 and EUR 1 = UZS 1з,4з6,01 (2023: USD l = UZý 12,3з8.77 and EUR
1 = UZS 1З,7З1.82). Exchange tesffictions and conttols exist ovet the convetsion оf UZS into othet
curencies. At present, йе UZS is not а fteely сопчеttiЫе cuffency outside of the Republic of
UzbeНstan.

сопоепiепсе translation into united states Dollar (usD) amoants

In addition to ptesenting the financial statements in uzs, supplementary information in usD has been
ptesented fot the convenience of users оf the financial statements.

Al1 amounts in the financial statements, including compatatives, afe tfanslated frоm uzs to usD at the
closing exchange fate at 31 Decembet 2024.

Fiпапсiаl iпstrumепts - hеу mеаsurеrпепt terrпs, Fait чаluе is the price that would Ье received to sell
an asset ot paid to ttansfet а Пability in an оtdеф transaction beмeen matket patticipants at thе
measufement date. Тhе best evidence of fait чаluе is ptice in an active matket. Ап aitive market is one
in which ttansactions fot the asset of liabiПty take рhсЪ йth sufficient ftequency and volume to provide
pticing infotmation on an ongoing basis. trait чаluБ оf financial instfumefits ttaded in ап active market is
measuted as йе product of the quoted pdce for thе individual asset or liability and йе quantity held Ьу
the entity. This is йе case even iг а matket's notmal daily ftading volume is nbt sufficieni to absotb йе
quantity held and placing otdets to sell thе position in а single ttйsасtiоп might affect thе quoted price.
Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flоuz models or models based on fecent arm's length
ttansactions ot considetation оf financial data of the investees, ate used to measute fait value of сеrйп
financial instruments fot vzhiсh extetnal matket pticing infotmation is not ачаilаые. Fait чаluе
measufements ate analyzed Ьу level in the fait value Ыeratchy as fоllочzs: (i) level опе afe measufements
at quoted pdces (unadjusted) in active markets fоt identical assets of liabilities, (ii) level Мо
measufements are valuations techniques йth all material inputs оЬsеrчаЫе fot the 

".rbi 
о, liability,

eithet ditectly (that is, as ptices) ot inditectly (that is, detived from pdces), and (iф level thtee
measufemeflts ate valuations not based on solely observable matket dаи (that is, the measufement
tequfues significant uпоЬsеrчаЫе inputs). Transfers beмeen levels оf the fait value hietarchy ate
deemed to hаче occurred at the end of the repotting petiod.

Тrапlасtiоп cortt ate inctemental costs йаt are ditectly attdbutaЫe to the acquisition, issue or disposal of
а Гtnancial instrument. An inctemental cost is one that uzould not hаче been incutted if йе ttansaction
had not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including

_
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employees acting as selling agents), advisots, Ыokets and dealets, levies Ьу tegrrlatory agencies and
secutities exchanges, and ttansгer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include deЬt ptemrums of
discounts, Гtпапсiпg costs of intetnal administtative or holding costs.

Аrпопiryd со.гl ('Ас') is the amount at whiclr the financial insttument was fecognized at initial
tecognition less any principal fepayments, plus acctued interest, and fоt financial assets less any
аllочzапсе fоt expected credit losses. Acctued interest includes amottization оf ttansaction costs
defetted at initial recognition and of any premium ot discount to matutity amount using the effective
interest method. Acctued intetest income and acctued intetest expense, inclrrding both айtuеd coupon
and amottized discount or premium (including fееs defetted at Ъdgiпаtiоп, if any), afe not pr...rrt".l
separately and are included in the саrфпg values оf telated items in tйе statement оf financial position.

The фпiuе iпlеrut пethod is а method ог allocating intetest income or interest expense ovet the relevant
pedod, So aS to aclrieve а constant periodic rate оf intetest (effective int.test rate) on thе саtфпg
amount. Тhе effective intetest tate is the tate that exactly discounts estimated fufure cash payments oi
teceipts (excluding futurе ctedit losses) thtouglr the expected life оf tlre financial instrrrment ot а shotter
petiod, if apptopriate, to the gtoss саtфпg amouflt of the financial instrument.

The еffесtivе intetest tate discounts cash flочzs оf чаriаые intetest insttuments to the next intefest
repricing date, except for the premium ot discount, r.vhich reflects tlre credit sptead over tlre floating
fate Specified in the instfument, of othef чаriаЫеs that are not feset to matket tates. Such pr.mi.r-. oi
discounts ate amottized ovet tlre wlrole expected life оf the insttument, Тhе pfesent чаluъ calculation
includes all fееs paid or teceived between parties to thе conttact tlrat ur. nn irrtJgral part оf the effective
interest rate. Тhе pfesent value calculation includes а11 fees paid ot r"сеi.."dЪ"twееп patties to the
contfact that are ап integtal part оf the еfГесtiче interest tate. Fot assets tlrat are putchasej ot originated
ctedit impaited ("POCI') at initial fecognition, the effective interest rate is adjusbd fоr ctedit tisk] i.e., it
is calculated based on the expected саsh flows on initial tecognition instead оf contractual payments.

Financial insttuments - initial recognition. Financial instruments at FvTpL ate initially tecotded at
fait value. All othet financial instruments are initially tecorded at fait value adjusted fоt transaction
costs. Fait value at initial recognition is best evidenced Ьу the transaction pdce. i gain ot loss оп initial
tecognition is only recotded if thete is а diffetence beмeen Гаit value urri t.оrr."йоп price чzhiсh can
ье evidenced Ь)'oth"t оьsеrvаые curfent market transactions in the same instfument о, Ьу u valuation
technique whose inputs include only data from оьsеr,чаые matkets, After thе initral t"cogniion, ап EcL
allowance is recognized fоt financial assets measured at дс and investments in dJЬt instruments
measuted at FVОСI, resulting in an immediate accounting loss,

All putclrases and sales оf Гtnarrcial assets that tequire del_ivery within the time ftame estab]-ished Ьу
regulation or matket convention ("regular way" purihases and sales) ate recotded at ttade date, whiсh is
the date on whiсh the Соmрапу commits to delivet а finarrcial urr.i. АШ оthш purchases ate recognized
when the entity becomes а ра(гу to the conttactual ptovisions оf tlre instrumeni.

Financial asýets - classification and subsequent measufement - measutement categories. Тhе
Соmрапу classifies firrancial assets iп the following measufement categories: FVTPL, F"vocl and дС.
Тhе classiГrcation and subsequent measufement oid.Ьt financial ur..й d.p"rrds on: (i) the Company's
business model fоr managing tlre telated assets portfolio and (ii) the caslr flow chatactetistics оf the
aSSet.

Financial assets - classification and subsequent measufement - business model. Tl.re business
model reflects hоw the Соmрапу manages the assets in ordet to generate cash flочrs - whethet the
company's objective is: i) solely to collect the contractual саsh flой frоm the assets ("hold to collect
conttactual cash flows",) ot (ii) to collect both thе conttactual cash flows and the .о.h flо*. arising
Гtоm thе sale оf assets ("hold to collect conffactr-lal cash flo,ws and sell') or, if neithet оf (i) and (ii) ii
аррliсаые, the financial assets afe classified as patt оf "othef" business model and measuted at FvTpL.
Business model is detetmined fоr а gtoup оf assets (on а pottfolio level) based on all televant evidence
about the activities that thе Company undettakes to aclrieve thе objectrve Set out fоr the pottfoLio
аvаilаЫе at the date оf the assessment. Factors consideted Ьу the Companyin determining thеЪusiпеss
model include thе purpose and compositron оf а portfolio, past experie.." оr, hоw thе саsh flows fоr
tlre tespective assets wete collected, hоw tisks ate usse.red urr-d -u.r"g.d, and hочz the assets'
petfotmance is assessed.
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Financial assets - classification and subsequent measufement - cash flow characteristics.
\хъеtе the business model is to hold assets to collect conttactual саsh flows or to hold contractr_ral cash
flочrs and sell, the Company aSSeSSes whethet the саsh flows tepresent solely payments of ptincipal and
interest (,SPPI,). Financial assets цzith embedded derivatives ate considered in their епЙеý when
detetmining whethet their cash flows are consistent with thе SPPI featute. In maНng this assessment,
the Company considets whethet the conttacfual cash flows are consistent йth а basic lending
aIfangement, i.e. intetest includes only considetation for ctedit risk, time чаluе оf mопеу, other basic
lendtng risks and ptofit mафп.

Whete the contractual terms inttoduce exposufe to risk ot volatility that is inconsistent with а basic
lending aIrangement, the financial asset is classified and measufed at trvTpl,. Тhе sppl assessment is
PetГotmed on initial tecognition оf an asset and it is not subsequently teassessed.

Financial assets - teclassification. Financial insttuments are teclassified only when the business
model fоt managing the pottfolio as а whole change, Тhе teclassification has а ptospective еffесt and
takes place frоm the beginning оf the Гtst teporting period that follows аftеr thе change in thе business
model. ТЬе Соmрапу did not сhапgе its business model during the current and compatative petiod and
did not make any teclassifications.

Financial assets impairment - ctedit loss alloчrance fot EcL. Тhе Соmрапу assesses, on а
fotwatd-looНng basis, thе EcL for debt instruments measuted at Ас and trvocl and Гоr the
exposllfes adsing from lоап cornmitments and financial guafantee contfacts. The Соmрапу measufes
ECL and recognizes ctedit loss allowance at еасh tepotting date. Тhе measlrfement оf ECL teflects: (i)
an unbiased and ptobabiПty weighted amount that is detetmined Ьу evaluating а fange of роssiЫе
outcomes, (ii) time value of mопеу and (iф all rеаsопаые and suрроttаые inгormation that is ачаilаые
without undue cost and effort at thе end оf еасh tepotting period about past events, cufIent conditions
and forecasts of futurе conditions.

Deы insttuments measured at Ас ate ptesented in the statement оf financial position net оf the
allowance fot ECL. Fot deЫ insttuments at trVоСI, changes in amortized cost, net оf аllоwапсе Гоt
F.CL, ate tecopized in ptofit or loss and otlret changes in саrфпg value are recognized in OCI as gains
less losses оп debt instruments at Fvocl.
Тhе Соmрапу appJies а tlrtee-stage model fot impaitment, based on changes in credit quality since
initial tecognition. А fiпапсiаl insttument that is not ctedlt-impaited on initial recogrrition isъlаssifiеd in
Stage 1. Financial assets in Stage 1 have theit ECL measuted at an amount equal to the pottion of
llfetime EcL that tesults from default events роssiые within йе next 12 months ot until Ёопtrасtuаl
matufity, if slrottet ("12 Months ECL,). If thе Соmрапу identifies а sipiflcant inctease in ctedit tisk
("SIСR,) since initial recognition, the asset is ttansfetted to Stage 2 and its ECL is measured based on
ECL on а lifetime basis, that is, up until contfactual matutity but considering expected prepayments, if
any ("Lifetime ECL"). Refet to Note 24 fot а desctiption оf hоvr thе Соmрапу dеtеimiЪеs whеп а
sIcR hаs occutted. If the company detetmines that а financial asset is ctedit-impaired, the asset is
transfetred to stage 3 and its EcL is measuted as а Lifetime EcL. Тhе company's definiaon оf credit
impaited assets and definition of defaultis explainedin Note 24.Fоt financial assets that ate putchased
or originated credit-impaited ("POCI Assets"), the ECL is always measured as а Lifetime ECi. Note 24
ptovides information about inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measudng ECL,
including an explanation ог how the company incotporates forward-looНng information in thе EcL
models.

Financial assets - wtite-off. Financial assets ate wtitten-off, in whole or in patt, чzhеп the Соmрапу
exhausted all practical fecovefy effotts and has concluded that there is no tеаsопаые expectation оf
fecovery. Тhе write-off reptesents а derecognition event. Indicatots that thete is no teasonable
expectation оf recovery include banktuptcy оf thе countetpafry, final decision оf tlre coutt йat
eliminates outstanding аmоuпt due frоm countefparty and significant delays in payments. Тhе Company
may write-off Гtnancial assets that are still subject to епгоtсеmепt activity when the Соmрапу seeks to
fecovef amounts that ate conttactually due, however, thete is по tеаsопаЫе expectation оf recovery,

Financial assets - derecognition. The Соmрапу detecognizes financial assets uzhеп (а) the assets afe
redeemed or the rights to cash flows frоm the assets otherwise expifed ot (Ь) the Соmрапу has
transfetred the dghts to thе cash flows ftоm the financial aSSetS of enteted into а qualiýling pass-
through aftangement whilе (i) also ttansfetting substantrally all tisks and tewards оf ownetship оГ tlre
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aSSetS ot (ii) neithc ttansferring поr retaining substantiallY all risks and rewards of оuzпеtshiР, but not
tetaining conttol, conttol is tetained if the countefpafty does not have the practical ability io sell the
asset in its entitety to ап untelated tbitd patty without needing to impose reskictions оп thе sale.

Financial liabilities - measufement categofies. Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently
measured at АС, except fot financial ]iabilities at FVTPL: this classification is applied to dеtйti.,еs,
financial liabrlrtres held for trading (e.g., shott positions in securities), .ontrngerrt considetation
recogrrized Ьу an acquitet iп а business combination and othet financial ]iabilities designated as such at
initia1 tecognition.

Financial liabilities - detecognition. Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished
(i.e., when thе obligation specified in the conffact is disclratged, cancelled ot expites).

An exchange befueen_ thе Company and its otiginal lendets оГ deЬt instfuments with substantially
different tefms, as well as substantial modifications оf tlre tetms and conditions of existing financial
liabilities, afe accounted for as an extingrrishment оf the original financial Jiability and the tесфitiоп оf
а new financial liability. Тhе tetms ate substantially different if the discounted present value оi thе cash
flows undet the печz tefmý, including any fees paid net of апу Гееs teceived and discounted using the
otiginal effective interest rate, is at least 10% different ftom the discounted ptesent чаluе оi the
temaining cash flows of thе original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative Гactors, suclr as thе
cuffency that tlre insffument is denominated in, changes in the ýре оf interest rate, печ/ convetsion
features attached to the instrument and сhапgе in loan covenants аrЪ аl.о consideted. If an exchange оf
dеы instruments of modiгrcation оf terms is accounted fot as an extinguishment, afly costs ot fees
incutted are tecognized as patt оf thе gain ot loss on the extinguirh-.rrt. tf thЪ ехсhапgе or
modification is not accounted fоr as an extinguishment, any costs о, i"", incutted adiust the .uiryir.g
amount оf the liability and ate amottized over the temaining tetm of the modified liability.

Modifications оf Liabilities that do not fesult iп extinguishment аrе accounted fоr as а change in estimate
using а cumulative catch-up method, with any gain ot loss tecognized in profit or lоЙ, unless the
economic substance оf the difference in catrying values is atttibuted to а capital ttansaction with
o,wnefs.

cash and cash equivalents. Саsh and cash equivalents afe items which ate teadily сопчеttiые to
known amounts of саsh and which ate subject to an insignificant risk ог changes in valub. cash and саsh
equivalents include placements with banks with otiginal maturities оf less than tlrree months, Funds
restticted for а petiod ог more thап tlrtee months on otigination are excluded ftоm cash and caslr
equivalents. cash and cash equivalents afe carried at Ас because: (i) they are held fоr collection оf
conttactual cash flows and those cash flows repfesent sppl, and (ii) thеу afe not designated at trvTpl.
Due from banks- Amounts due ftom banks ate tecotded wlren the Company advances money to
countefpafty banks. Amounts due ftоm banks ate cattied at Ас чzhеп: (i) they are held Гоr the purpbses
of collecting contfactual саsh flows and those cash flows feptesent SPPI, and'(ii) they ate not dЁsiфаtеd
at trVTPL.

Lease teceivable. whеtе the Соmрапу is а lessor in а lease whiсh ttansfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownetslrip to the lessee, the assets leased out afe pfesented as а lease
tесеivаЫе and cattied at thе ptesent value оf thе futute lease payments, Lease tйеiчаЫеs are initially
tecognized at commencement using а discount rate determineJ at inception (tlre earliet оf the date of
the lease ag(eement and the date оf commitment Ьу the parties to the рЙсiраl ptovisions оf tlre lease).

The diffеrепсе between the gross receivable and the present value reptesents uneatned fiпапсе income.
This_income is tecognized очеr tlre tetm оf the lea.se using the пеi investment method (befote tax),
whiclr teflects а constant pedodic fate оГ tetufn. Inctemental costs ditectly atffibtltaЫe to negotrating
and artanging the lease are included in tlre initial measufement оf the lease receivable and reJuce the
amount оf income tecognized ovet the lease tetm. Finance income frоm leases is tecorded within
interest income on lease in ptofit or loss fot the yeat.

Inception оf tlre lease. Тhе inception of the lease is considered to Ье the date оf the lease agfeement, of
thе date of commitment, if egllet, Fot putposes of this definition, а commitment shall ЬЪ in -tijng,s_lBned Ьу thе patties involved in the ttansaction, and shall specifically set fоrth the principal t.r-, Ji
the transaction.

Fa



Notes fo the Fiпапсiаl statements fоr the year ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2О24

Jsc "UZBEK LEAS/NG lNтЕRNдтIоNдL А,о."

commencement оf the lease tetm. Тhе commencement оf the lease tetm is tlre date frоm which the
lessee is entitled to exercise its tight to use the leased asset, It is the date оf initial recognition оf the
lease.

unguaranteed residual value, unguatanteed tesidual value is that pottion ог the residual valrre оf the
leased asset, the realization of which Ьу the lessot is not assufed ot ii guмanteed solely Ьу а party related
to the lessor.

Equipment fot leasing. Equipment for leasing fepresents equipment purchased to Ье subsequently
transfetted into leasing and is stated at cost. If tlrere is а diffetenie beMeen cost and fait value оf thb
equipment at tlre date of inception оf the lease, а gain or loss is tecogrrized чzhеп the equipment is
teclassified into lease tесеiчаыеs on the date оf commencement оf thе lease term.
prepayments. ptepayments afe cattied at cost less provision fоt impatment. Any advances made to
suppliets, for an equipment to Ье subsequently transfetted to lessee, aftet the date оГ thе inception оГ
the lease and Ьеfоrе the date оf commencement оf tlre lease term are tecorded as "рrерауйепts to
vendots for lease equipment". Prepayments to acquite aSSetS are ttansfetted to tlre caшying amorrnt оf
the asset once the Соmрапу has oыained control оf the asset and it is рtоьаые that Гuturе economic
benefits associated with thе asset will flow to the company. The ptepayments in fоrеigп cuffency to
pr,rtchase non-financial assets ate tecognized at the exchange ,ut" p...ruiling on thеt teiognition iate
with no subsequent tevaluations.

other pfepayments аlе wtitten оff to рrогtt ot loss when the goods ot setwices relating to tlre
Prepayments ate received. IГ thete is an indication that the assets, goods or services relaing to а
pfepayment will not Ье received, the саrфпg value оf tl-re prepayment is wtitten dочrп accotdingf and а
cottesponding impaitment loss is tecopized in proГrt of loss fot the уем.
Repossessed collatetal. Repossessed collateral represents non-financial assets acquitecl Ьу the
Соmрапу in settlement оf ovetdue leases. Тhе assets ate initially recognized at fait value when acquired
and included in ptemises and equipment, other financial 

^r..t., 
investment propetties ot inventoties

within othet assets depending on tlrefu паtufе and the Company's intention in tbspect оf tecovery of
these assets and afe subsequently remeasuted and accounted fоt in accotdance йth the accounting
policies for tlrese categories оf assets.

Premises and equipment. Premises and equipment afe stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and ptovision fot impaitment, urhеrе required.

Costs оf minor repaits and maintenance aIe expensed whеп incutted. Cost оf replacing majot parts or
components ог premises and equipment items is capttalized and thе replaced patt is tеtiйd.
A_t tlre end оf еасh reporting date the management aSSeSs цzhеthеr thete is апу indication of impairment
of ptemis"s and equipment. If any suсh indication exists, thе management estimates the tесочеtаые
amount, which is determined as the higher of an asset's fait value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Тhе carrying amount is teduced to tlre tecovetable аmоuпt and the imparrment loss is tecognized in tlre
statement оf рtогrt or loss and_other comprehensive income. An impairment loss te.ogliz"d fot an
asset iп pdot yeats is tevetsed if thete has Ьееп а change in the estimates used to detetmine thе asset's
чаluе in use of fait чаluе less costs to sell.

Gains and losses on disposals detetmined Ьу comparing proceeds with carrying amount are tecognized
in ptofit or loss fоt the yeat (withrn othm operatirrý i..Й" or expenses),
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Depreciation. Depreciation on items of pfopefty and equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to theit residual values orref theif estimated useful lives;

Category of propetty and equipment

Arшtt iп theforrп of iдht of ase

Office equipment:
Fаrпitаrе апd еqифrпепt

CoпPHter еqафmепt

Vehic/et

Other

Useful lives in yeats

5

7-15

5
5

7-15

тhе tesidual value of an asset is the estimated amount йаt the company чzould curtently obtain ftom
disposal оf the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset was alteady of the 

"g. 
and in the

condition expected at йе end of its useful life. Тhе tesidual value of u, ".r.i is nil if Йе Соmрапу
expects to use the asset until the end of its physical life. The assets' residual values and useful lives ate
tevie,wed, and adjusted if apptopriate, at the end of еасh tepotting period.

Impaitment of non-financial assetý. Impaitment losses ate recognised in profit ot loss whеп there is
an indication that а non-financial asset may Ье impaited aftet the initial iecognition. Тhе folloйng
ctiteria ate used to detetmine that there is objective evidence that ап impairment loss has occutted:

evidence is available of obsolescence of physical damage оf an asset;

а vendot does not tefund pfepaymeflts/advances for goods andf ot services in case of tetmination
of а procutement cofitfact due to non-de[very of goods andf ot ptovision оf services Ьу the
vendot Йthin agteed contractual tefms;
the value of repossessed equipment and building signifrcantly decreases as а result of detedorating
matket conditions; and
market intetest 1ates of other market fates of tetutn on investments hаче increased duting thе
petiod, and those incteases are likely to affect the discount fate used in calculating an asset's value
in use and dectease the asset's tесочеrаЫе amount materially.

Bottowings. Bottowings ate fecofded initially at fait value less transaction costs incutted.
subsequently, Ьоttойпgs are stated at Ас using the effective intetest method,

Lease liabilities. \ffъеtе the company is а lessee in а lease чzhiсh шansfetred substantially all the dsks
and rewards incidental to ownetship to the Company, the assets leased ate capitafised in ptemises and
equipment at the commencement оf the lease at йе lower of the fair value оГйе leased isset, and йе
pfeýent vаluе of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated beMeen the liability and
Гrпапсе charges So aS to achieve а constant fate on the lease balance outstanding. The cotrespo.rdirrg
rental obligations, net of futцtе finance chatges, are included in lease liabilities. Тhе interest cost is
chatged to рtогrt or loss fot the yeaf over thе lease period using the effective interest mейоd, Тhе
assets acquited undеt leases are depteciated очm their useful life, or the shottet lease term if thе
company is not teasonably certain that it will oыain oчznetship Ьу the end of йе lease tetm. Тhе
соmрапу has elected not to tecognize dght-of-use assets and lъаsе liabilities fot leases оf low-value
assets and short-tetm leases, The Соmрапу recognizes йе lease payments associated чzith these leases as
an expense on а sttaiфt-line basis ovet the lease term.

Advances ftom lessees. payments received Ьу the company ftom the lessee before йе
commencement оf йе lease teш afe tecotded as advances ftom lessees. Such amounts ate adjusted
against lease tесеiчаыеs on the date оf commencement of the lease tetm.

Trade payables. Ttade рауаЫеs ate accrued whеп the countefparty has petfotmed its obligations
undш the contfact and ate catried at Ас.
share capital. shares are classified as equity. Inctemental costs ditectly attributaыe to the issue of пеvz
shares ate shown in equity as а deduction, net оf tax, ftom the proceeds. Any excess of the fait value of
considetation teceivedovet the pat value оf shares issued is tecbtded 

". 
,h"rЁ premium in equity.

Dividends. Dividends ate recotded in equity in йе period in which they ate declared. Dividends
declated after the reporting date and befote the financial statements are authotised for issue ate
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disclosed iп the subsequent events note. Tlre statutolT accounting fepofts оf tlre Соmрапу aIe the basis
fot ptofit disttibution and other appfopfiations. Uzbeklstan legislation identtfies the basis оf distribution
as the statutory tetained eatnings.

Income taxes. Income taxes afe provided fot in accotdance with legislation enacted ot substantively
enacted Ьу thе end оf the reporting period. Тhе income tax clratge comprises curfent tax and defetred
tax and is tecognised in ptofit ot loss fоt the year except if it is tecognised in othet comprclrensive
income ot ditectly in equity because it relates to ttansactions that are also recognised, in thе same or а
different petiod, in otlrer comprehensive income ot dfuectly in equity.

Cuttent tax is the amount expected to Ье paid to of recoveted ftоm the taxation authotities iп tespect оf
tахаые profits ot losses fot the cuffent and ptiot petiods. Тахаьlе рrогtts or losses are based on
estimates if financial statements are authorised prior to filing relevant tax fetlrfns. Taxes othet tlran оп
iпсоmе are recotded within administtative and other opetating expenses,

Defetted income tax is provided usirrg the Ьаlапсе sheet liability method fоt tempotary diffetences
arising between the tax bases оf assets and liabi]ities and their саtцуiпg amounts fо, hrr"rr.iol tepotting
pufposes. In accotdance with the initial tecognition exemption, defetted taxes ate not tecotded fоt
tempofary diffetences on initral tecognition of an asset or а liability in а transaction otlret thап а
business combination if the transaction, when initially tecorded, affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit, Deferred tax balances are measured at tax fates enacted or substantively enacted at tlre teporting
date, whiсh ate expected to apply to the petiod чzhеп thе tempotary differences will reverse, Dъfешеd
tax assets fоr deductiЫe tempotary diffetences afe fecofded опlу to thе extent tlrat rt is ptobable that
futute tахаые рtогrt йl1 Ье ачаilаые against which the deductions can Ье utilised.

Deferred tax assets fоr dеduсtiЫе tempotary diffetences and tax loss catry forwatcls ate tecorded опlу
to the extent that it is ptobable that future taxable ptofit will Ье ачаilаые against wlrich the deductions
сап Ье utilised.

Income and expense recognition. Intefest iпсоmе and expense ate recotded in tlre statement оf
profit ot loss and other comprelrensive iпсоmе fоr all deЫ instruments о11 an acctual basis using the
effective interest method. This method defets, as part of intetest income or expense, all fееs рЙ or
received beМeen the parties to the contfact that are an integtal patt оf thе Ъffесtiче intetest rate,
ttansaction costs and all othet ptemiums or discounts.

Fees integtal to the effective interest tate include odgrnation fees teceived or paid Ьу tlre Cornpany
telating to thе cteation or acquisition оf а Гrпапсiаl asset of issuance of а financial liability, fоr examplb
fees fot evaluating crediМorthiness, evaluating and tecotding glrafantees ot collateral, negotiating Ье
tetms of thе insttument and fot ptocessing ftansaction documents.

Commitment fees received Ьу the Соmрапу to otiginate leases at matket intetest fates are integtal to thе
effective interest tate if it is рtоЬаЫе that the Company vrill enter into а specific lending affаngement
and does not expect to sell the resulting leases shottly aftet otigination.

Otlret fее and commission income are recogrrised at а point irr time when thе Соmрапу satisfies its
perfotmance obligation, usually upon execution оf the undetlying ttansaction. Тhе amount of fее or
commission received, or rесеiчаые fepfesents the transaction ptice fоt the sefvices identified as distinct
performance obligations. All othet income and expense items ate gerrerally tecotded on ап acctual basis
ьу teference to completion оf tlre specific transaction assessed on tlre basis оf tlre actual setvice
provided as а proportion оf thе total serrrices to Ье provided.

Staff costý and telated conttibutions. 'ý(/ages, salaties, conttibutions to tlre UzbeНstan state pension
and social insutance Гunds, paid аппuаl leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benifits ate
acctued in the year in whrch the associated services ate tendeted Ьу the employees оf the iompany. Тhе
Company has no legal or consttuctive oblrgation to make pension ot similar berreГrt p^y-".i, beyond
the payments to the statutoly defined contribution scheme.

ptesentation of statement of financial position in order of liquidity. Тhе company does not hаче а
clearly identifiable opetating cycle and thetefore does not pfesent cuffent and non-cuttent assets and
liabilities sepatately in thе statemeflt оf financial position. Instead, assets and ]rabilities are ptesented in
otder of theit liquidity. Rеfс to Note 24 fot analysis оf financial instrr-rments Ьу expected maturity. 'Тhе

16
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following tаЫе provides information on amounts expected to Ье tecovefed ot settled Ьеfоtе and aftet
twelve months aftet the repotting petiod fot items that ate not analysed in Note 24.

2024 202з

17

Аmочпts expected to Ье
recovered or settled

Within 12 Beyond 12
months months

аftеr the after the
rероrtiпg reporting

Total Аmочпts expected to Ье
rесочеrеd оr settled

Within 12 Веуопd 12
months months

аftеr the after the
rероЁiпg reporting

Total

ASSETs
Equipment for
leasing
Ргерауmепts to
vendors fоr leasing
equipment
Deferred income
tax asset
premises and
equipment
other поп-fiпапсiаl
assets
LlABlLlTlES
Advances frоm
lessees
оthеr поп-fiпапсiаl
liabilities

66,896,675

1о,471,525

61,397,623

34,39в,142

27,429,3ов

9"l85,895

14,455,769

66,896,675

1о,471,525

9"l85,895

14,455,769

6,t,397,623

34,396,142

27,429,3ов

146,171,627

159,235,367

45,734,455

55,517,025

9,249,713

6,587,279

8,592,992

- 146,171,627

_ 159,235,367

6,587,279

8,592,992

45,734,455

55,517,025

9,249,713

2023

Amounts expected to Ье
recovered оr seftled

Within 12 Beyond 12
months months
afterthe afterthe
reporting reporting

Total Amounts expected to Ье
recovered оr settled

Within 12 Beyond l2
months months
afterthe afterthe
rероЁiпg reporting

Total

lп thousands of
UsD

ASSETS
Equipment for
leasing
Prepayments to
vendors fоr leasing
equipment
Deferred income tax
asset
рrеmisеs and
equipment
оthеr поп-fiпапсiаl
assets
LlABlLlTlES
Advances from
lessees
оthеr поп-fiпапсiаl
liabilities

5,178

810

4,752

2,вв2

2,123

711

,1"t 19

5,178

810

711

1,119

4,752

2,662

2,123

,1 
1 ,313

12,з24

3,540

4,297

716

532

665

11,313

12,324

532

665

3,540

4,297

716

2024
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Gritical аGcоцпtaпg estimates, and jшdgеmепts in apptying ассошпtiпg
policies

Тhе Company makes estimates and assumptions that аffесt tbe amounts recogTrized in the Гrпапсiаl
stаtements and the cмryrng amounts of assets and liabilines within the next financial yeaf. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on management's experience and othet factots,
including expectations of futute events that ate believed to Ье rеаsопаые undet the circumstances.
Management also makes certain judgements, apatt ftom those involving estimations, irr tlre ptocess оf
applying tlre accounting policies. Judgements that hаче the most significant effect on the amounts
tecopized in the Гlпапсiаl statements and estimates tlrat сап cause а sigrrificarrt adjustment to tlre
саtфПg аmount of assets and liabilities withiп thе next financial year include:

ECL measurement. Measurement оf ECLs is а significant estimate that involves determination of
methodology, models and data inputs. Details ог EcL measurement methodology are disclosed in Note
24. Тhе following components hаче а major impact on credit loss аllоwапсе: deГlnition of default,
SICR, Probability оf default ("PD'), exposufe at default ("EAD"), and loss giverr default ("LGD'), as
rvell as models of macro-economic scenatios. Тhе Соmрапу regularly revie,ws and validates the models
and inputs to the models to reduce any diffetences beмeen expected credit loss estimates and actual
credit loss experience.

Тhе СоmРаПу used suрроttаЫе forward-IooНng information fot measufement оГ ECL, ptimarily an
outcome оГ its own macfo-economic Гotecasting model. Тhе most significant forrxzard-looНng
assumPtions that cortelate Йtlr ECL 1ечеl and theit assiped weights ý/efe on import figures.

Significant inctease in ctedit dsk ("SICR"). I. otder to detetmine whether there has been а
sigrrificant inctease in credit risk, the Соmрапу compafes the risk оf а default occurfing over thе lifе оf а
financial instrument at tlre end оf tlre repotting date with the risk of default at tl,e date of initral
tecognition. Тhе assessment considers relative increase in ctedit risk tather thап achieving а specific
level оf ctedit risk at the end оf the teporting period. Тhе Соmрапу considets all rеаsопаые and
supportable forward-looНng infotmation ачаilаые without undue cost and еffоtt, чzhich includes а
tange оf factots, including behavioral aspects of patticular customer portfol_ios. Тhе Соmрапу identrfies
ьеhаviоrаl indicatots оf incteases in ctedit dsk prior to delinquency and incolpotated apptoptlate
forward-looНng information into the credit risk assessment, either at an individual instrument, of on а
portfolio level. RеГеt to Note 24,

Deferted income tax asset recognition. Тhе recognized deferred tax asset fepfesents income taxes
rесоvеtаые through futute deductions from tахаые profits and is recotded in thе statement оf financial
position. Dеfешеd income tax assets ate recorded to the extent that realization оf tlre telated tax benefit
is рtоьаые. Тhе futute tахаые ptofits and thе amount оf tax benefits that are рtоьаые in the ftrtute are
based on а medium-term business plan ptepated Ьу management and extfapolated tesults tlreteaftet.
Tlre business рlап is based on management expectations that ate believed to Ье reasonable under the
citcumstances.

п
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5 New апd revised lnternational Fiпапсiаl Reporting Standards (..lFRSs'')

Тhе follouring amendments to standatds Ьесаmе effective fot the GtouP efГective 1 January 2024, b,Jt
did not hаче а significant impact on the Company.

Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in а Sale and Leaseback

The amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requitements Йаt а sellet-lessee uses when measuring the lease
liability that arises in а sale and leaseback ftansaction to enýure that йе sellet-lessee does not tecognize
any amount of gain of loýs that relates to the dght of use that it tetains.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Curtent of Non-Cuffent

Тhе amendments to IAS 1 set out requirements fot classiýring liabilities as cuffent of non-cuffent. The
amendments сlаriф:

о \i7hat is meant Ьу а defettal right;

. That а deferral tiфt must exist at the end of the reporting period;

' That classification does not depend on thе likelihood Йаt йе entity will exetcise its defetral right;

' That only if an embedded detivative in а сопчеttiЫе Iiability is itself ап equity instrument uzill the
tetms of йе Iiability not affect its classification.

In addition, the Group must disclose information whеп а liability arising ftom а loan agreement is
classified as non-cuffent and the entity's dght to defer payment is contingent on compliance with future
covenants fot Melve months.

Suppliet Financing Attangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flovs and IFRS 7 Financial Instrшments: Disclosutes
clariý' the chatacteristics of suppli* financing affangements and require additional disclosutes about
such attangementý. The disclosure tequirements in the amendments afe intended to help users оf
гtпапсiаl statements undgstand thе impact of supplier financing affangements on the Gtoup's liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.

Тhе application of these amendments did not hаче а matetial impact on йе consolidated financial
statements.

Othet Standatds and amendmentý that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early Ьу
the Company include:
. IFRS 18 "Ptesentation and Disclosute in Financial Statements"
. Amendments to IAS 21: Restrictions оп Cutrency Convettibility
These amendments afe not expected to hаче а sipiГrcant impact оп the financial statements in the
period оf initial application and thetefote no disclosures hаче been made.

,t9
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Gash and caýh equivalentý

2024
UzS,k

2023
UzS,k

2024 2023
USD,k USD,k

счrrепt account in uzs
счrrепt account in usD
Счrrепt account in EUR
Current account iп RUB
Счrrепt account in GBP

7,805,203
139,728
32,214

S&P вв-
S&P вв-

2,629,508
188,425
108,104

4,281 - 1

1,295 1,2вз 1 1

604 204
914
28

7,730,200 597
252,521 20

Рччliiоп gп E9L , , = , (Цзzвt (8,380) (lt (lr
l оtаl casn апd casn equivalents 7,972,393 2,918,914 в17 22в

F91 йе pufpose of ECL measrшement cash and cash equivalents balances ше included in Stage 1. The
tab]e below ptovides an analysis of йе ctedit quality of cash and cash equivalents based bn ctedit
tatings as at 31 Decembet 2024 ьпd 2О23, tespectively. Refш to Note 25 iot the ECL meaýufement
approach.

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances, was as follows:

г!пяп"i"liцstitчtiоп. R"ting ;Ki чЗЪlfl
Neither paBt due поr impaircd
National Bank of uzbekistan
UzKDB Вапk
Рrочisiоп оп ECL
Total cash and cash 617

institution
Neither past due поr impaired
National Bank of uzbekistan
UzKDB Bank
Dачr Bank

Rating

S&P вв-
S&P вв-
S&P в

2023
UzS,k

2,617,837
116,753
192,710

2023
USD,k

203
9

,15

l1
226

ision оп ECL
Tota] cash and cash equivalents 2,918,914

ý!ояrаRhiсаl, curtency and interest rate analysis оf cash and cash equivalents ate disclosed in Note 24.
Infotmation on cash and cash equivalents held with related patties is disclosed in Note 27.

Lease receivables

2024
UzS,k

202з
UzS,k

2024
USD,k

2023
USD,k

Fiпапсе lease receivab|es
Less credit loss allowance / provision for

832,521,525
(13,273,087)

707,640,837
(12,641,363)

в4,434
(1,027)

54,769
(978)

As at 31 December 2024 therc arc 431, (31 Decemb et 202З:530) lease contfacts, which expite ovet thе
next 1-7 years. The normal contractual lease artangements оf the Company include the following main
terms and conditions:

depending on а level of ctedit risk of а lessee. These advance lease payments afe treated as
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advances from lessees and tecopized as Company's fiability until the commencement date of
those leases;

and othet ЙЙ an insurш approved Ьу Йе Company and keeps it insured throughout the term
ofthe lease. Insutance fees are paid Ьу the Lessee;

not fulfilled;

inception of the lease; and

lease agteement. In that case the sale value of the equipment aftеt the lease period should not
exceed 10% оf the mопйlу rentals.

Тhе Соmрапу holds title to the leased assets duting Йе lease term.

Economic sector risk concenttations Йthin the customer lease portfolio afe as follows:

31 December2024 3l December2023

21

Аmочпt
Uzs,k

Amount
USD,k

Аmочпt
UzS,k

Аmочпt
UsD,k

construction materials
Textile

construction
Business and оthеr services
Тrаdе
Medicine

Oil & gas industry
Transport
Chemical
Agriculture
Tourism & catering
pharmaceutical

9,664 15.0% 103,022,776
8,595 ,l3.3% 60,988,060
7,586 11,8% 42,305,783
6,677 10,4% 95,660,690
4,816 7,5% 45,793,247
4,697 7,3% 60,858,555
4,522 7.0% 22,994,299
3,259 5j% 71,386,167
2,192 3.4% 21,542,001
2,145 3,3о/о 34,71'1,563
2,065 3.2% 28,939,632
1,970 3.1% 22,121,195
531 0.8% 3,213,890
2о4 0.3% 3,581,832

4,72о 8,6о/о

3,274 6.0%
7,404 13,5%
3,544 в,5%
4,710 8.6%
1,780 3,2%
5,525 1о,lо/о,1,667 3.0%
2,687 4,9%
2,24о 4,1о/о
1,712 3.1о/о
249 0.5%
277 0.5%

,l24,866,430

11,1,050,906

8в,273,490
62,227,874
60,685,146
58,421,646

28,3,18,309
27,713,898
26,в84,457
25,458,177
6,862,417
2,633,039

7,g74

Рареr production and printing 98,020,726

Food production and processing 42,108,986

9tЦеI_ _ _ _ 71,,tg6,024 5,511 8.6% 9О,521,148 7,О06 12.7%
l otal lease receмables
(before provision on 832,521,525 в4,434 100% 707,640,8з7 54,769 1oo%
expected credit lrrsses)

ollo
ollo
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ц

Тhе credit loss allowance fot lease tесеiчаЫеs ftom customers tecognized in thе pedod is impacted Ьу а
vatiety оf factots, details of ECL measufement ate ptovided in Note 24. Below, main movements in thе
tаые are described:

' Ttansfefs between Stage 1, 2 апd 3 are due to balances expefiencing significant incteases (ot
decteases) оf ctedit dsk or becoming ctedit-bpaired in the period, and the consequent "step up"
(or "step down") beмeen 12-mопй and Lifetime ECL;

' Additional allowances fоr new financial instruments recognized during the period, as well as
releases fot financial instruments derecopized in the period;

' Impact on the measufement оf ECL due to changes to model assumptions, including changes in
PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period, atising ftom update of inputs to ECL models;

' rff/rite-offs of allowances telated to assets that were written off dudng thе period.

Тhе folloЙng tаЫе contains ап analysis of йе ctedit risk exposure оf lease rесеiчаЫеs from customers
measuted at amottized cost and for чzhiсh an ECL allowance is recognized. The carrying amount of
lease rесеiчаЫеs ftom customefs below also represents thе Company's maximum exposufe to credit risk
on these lease tесеiчаыеs.

Тhе credit quality оf lease teceivables frоm colporate customers carried at amottized cost is as follows
at 31 Decembet 2024:

stagel Stage2 ...-9!"s"-1-.
(12-months 1litetimJЁcl (lifetim_eECL

EcL) for SICR} ffi:fJJ;
Total

/п fhоusалds of uzs
Lease receivables

Non очеrdче
Less than 30 days overdue
3'l to 90 days overdue
91 to 365 days overdue
Очеr 365 days overdue

462,544,873
60,213,22в

2,844,351
29,528,192
86,149,050

24,834,004
2,580,943
9,728,363

105,920,070
48,178,455

490,22з,227
92,322,361
95,877,412

105,920,070
48,178,455

Gross carrying amount 522,758,098 118,521,593 191,241,8з4 832,521,525
Provision оп EcL (3,575,064) (2,694,573) (7,003,451) (13,273,087)
Сеrryiпg аmочпt 519,183,034 ,115,827,020 184,238,384 819,248,438

lп thousands ofusD

Stage,|
(12-months

EcL)

Stage 2
(lifetime EGL

for SlCR)

Stage 3
(lifetime ECL

for credit
impaired)

Total

Lease receivables

Nоп overdue
Less than 30 days overdue
3'l to 90 days overdue
91 to 365 days overdue
Over 365 days overdue

35,798
4,660

22о
2,285
6,668

1,922
200
753

8,1 98
3,729

37,940
7,145
7,421
8,198
3,729

г
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The credit quality of lease receivables frоm cotporate customefs caffied at amottized cost iý as follows
at 31 Decembet 202З:

Stage 1

({2-months
EcL)

Stage 2
(lifetime ECL

for SlCR)

Stage 3
(lifetime ECL

for credit
lп thousands of uzs
Lease

Nоп overdue
Less than 30 days overdue
31 to 90 days overdue
91 to 365 days overdue
Очеr 365 days overdue

Nоп overdue
Less than 30 days overdue
31 to 90 days overdue
91 to 365 days overdue
Очеr 365 days overdue

Stage 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 (lifetime ECL

(12-months (lifetime EGL for credit
И fhочsапdý of 9SD ECL) fоr SICR) impaired)
Lease recelveDles

396,559,734
98,349,844

30,694

44,734,27;
16,438,93,1

3,46;

23,285,в78
52,048,691
6,334,559

37,018,929
32,870,193

,l,802

4,028
490

2,865
2,544

419,845,412
195,132,813
22,773,49о
37,018,929
32,870,193

Total

32,49в
15,1о2
1,762
2,865
2,544

The extent to which collatetal and othш ctedit enhancements mitigate credit tisk fot financial assets
carried at amortized cost that are credit impaited, is ptesented Ьу disclosing collateral values separately
fоr (i) those assets whete collateral and other credit enhancements are equal to ot exceed catrying valub
оf the asset ("over-collatetalised assets') and (ii) those assets where collatetal and othet ctedit
enhancements are less than йе catrying чаluе of the asset ("undet-collatetalised assets').

Тhе effect оf collatetal at 31 December 2024 is presented fot all leases, whethc impaited of not, aS
follows:

over-col]ateralised assets under-collateralised asseb
Саrryiпg value Fаir value of Саrryiпg value Fаiг value of

|п thousands of uzs of assets collateral - ойssеts соllаtеrаl
гiпа
collateralised Ьу:
- equipment
- motor vehicle
- non-residential rеаl estate
- others

251,977,396 25,t,977,396 56,877,272 48,22о,653
1в5,469,2в2 1в5,469,2в2 7,490,071 6,35о,о95
339,320,128 339,320,128 ,t1,387,396 9,654,255

Total lease receivables 756,766,786 756,766,786 75,754,7з9 64,225,00з

27
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ln thousands of usD

over-collateralised assets under-collateralised assets
Саrryiпg value Fаir value of

of assets collateral
Саrryiпg value Fаir value of

of assets collateral
Lease rесеiчаЬlеs collateralised Ьу:
- equipment
- mоtоr vehicle
- non-residential rеаl estate
- others

19,502
12,8о7
2в,2в2_

19,502
12,807
26,262

4,4о2
580
uu1

3,732
491
747

Тhе effect of collateral at 31 Decembet 202З is presented fоr all leases, whether impaited of not, as
follouzs:

over-collateralised assets under-collatera]ised asseb
Саrryiпg value Fаir value of Carrying value Fаir value of

lп thousands of uzs of assets collateral of assets collateral
Lease rесеiч"ыеs 

"oll"- equipment
- motor vehicle
_ поп-rеsidепtiаl real estate
- others

187,352,173 187,352,173
212,884,204 212,884,204
255,836,502 255,836,502

30,1,13,28,|
,11,402,853

8,338,407
1,713,417

,16,404,730

6,21,1,901
4,542,491

Total lease receivables 656,072,879 656,072,879 51 ,567,958 27,159,122

lп thousands of usD

over-col lateral ised assets under-collateralised assets
Саrryiпg value Fаir value of

of assets collateral
Carrying value Fаir value of

of assets collateral
Lease receivables collateralised Ьу:
- equipment
- motor vehicle
- non-residential rеаl estate
- others

14,500
1в,476
19,801

14,500
1в,476
19,80,1

2,331
883
645
,133

1,27о
481
352_

Total lеаsе receivables 5О,777 50,7т7 3,992 2,103

Тhе СоmРапу oЫains collatetal valuation at the time оf gtanting leases and generally updates it every
Мо to three years, dependrng on the sipificance оf thе lease exposute. Тhе values оf collateral
consideted in this disclosure ate aftet а valuation haircut оf 20-100О/о applied to considet liquidity and
quality оf the pledged assets,

/п fhousands of uzs Due iп 1 чеаr Due between 2
and 5 years

Due аftеr 5
уеаrs

Total

Fiпапсе lease payments receivable
at 3,t December 2024 489,432,374 6,t3,636,4o1 3,718,7,t8 1,1о6,787,493
Uпеаrпеd fiпапсе iпсоmе (128,745,743) (141,s01,507) (3,71s,71s) (274,265,96s)

9redit lgss gllow?lce (6,303,77,1) (6,969,316) - (13,273,087)
Present value of lease рауmепЬ
receivable аs at 31 December 2024 354,38а860 464,865,578 - 8,19,248,438

Lease рауmепЪ receivable as at 3l
December 2023 466,368,934 475,286,010 3,304,181 944,959,125

(237,318,288)Less чпеаrпеd finance income (118,504,812) (1,15,509,295) (3,304,18,1)

less рrgчis!оп о! .ECL (8,300,600) (4,340,763) - (12,64'|,363)
Present value of lease рауmепts
receivable as at 31 December 2023 339,563,523 355,435,95'| - 694,999,474
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Due in 1 year Dче between 2
and 5 уеаrs

Due аftеr 5
уеаrSUSD

Lease рауmепЪ receivable as at 3l
DесеmЬеr 2024
Less чпеаrпеd finance iпсоmе
Less provision on EGL

37,879
(9,963)

(488)

47,493
(10,975)

(539)

288
(288)

85,660

{21,22в)
(,о27\

Present value of lease payments
recejvable as at 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 27,428 35,979

Lease payments receivable as at 31
December 2023 36,095 36,785 256 73,136
Less чпеаrпеd fiпапсе iпсоmе (9,172) (8,939) (256) (18,367)
Less provision оп ECL (643) (33$ - (978)
Present value of leese рауmепЪ
receivable as at 31 DесеmЬеr 2023 2в,280 27,511 - 53.791

Geogtaphical, cuttency, matutity and intetest tate analysis оf lease tесеiчаЫеs are disclosed in Note 24.

8 Еqшiрmепt for lеаsiпg

EquiPment for leasing fepresents equipment purchased fot leasing pufposes and yet to Ье transfetted to
the lessees.

2023 2о24 2023
USD,kUzS,k UzS,k USD,k

Equipment at 1 January (at cost)
Equipment acquired during the уеаr

22,191,взз ,11,313 1,718
523,599,475 27,893 40,525

_Equpment transferred to leases (439,670,939) (399,619,481) (34,о29) (зо,929)
Equipmentat 3l DесеmЬеr (at cost) 66,896,675 146,171,627 5,178 1,|,313

At 31 Decembg 2024, йе outstanding balance of equipment for leasing mainly consisted of
compfessof, Ыgh speed pipe extrusion line, tfactof ttailet, weaving machine, chocolate ptoduction line
and othet equipment on lease ptojects.

146,171,627
360,395,987

Рrерауmепts to vendors for leasing еqчiрmепt

2024 2023
UzS,k UzS,k

2024
USD,k

2023
USD,k

Fоrеigп vendors з,441,244,t46,078,189 266 11,306
Por_ngsticvendors. 7,030,281 13,,157,178 544 1,018
Total рrерауmепts to vendors for lеаsiпg
equipment 10,471,525 159,235,367 810 12,324

Total



JSc "UZBEK LЕдS/NG lNтЕRNдтIоNдL А,о,"
Notes to the Fiпапсiаl stafements fоr the уеаr ended З1 December 2024

з0

,l0 Promiзes and equapment

Assets in Furniture
the form of and office

lп thousands of lJzbeksoиms right of use equipment

Vehicles оthеr Total

Costat31 DесеmЬеr2023
Accumulated depreciation and

amortisation

8,267,895 1,900,043 3,651,863 323,247 14,143,048

(3,307,158) (1,048,384) (1.028,731) (165.783) (5.550.056)

Саrryiпg amount at
3'l December 202З 4,960,737 851,659 2,623,1зз l57,463 8,592,992

Additions
Disposal _ Cost
Disposal - Accumulated
dерrесiаtiоп
Depreciation and amortisation

12,о81,427 390,986
(8,267,895) (60,665)

3,307,158 61,344

777,287 7,17о 13,262,870
(290,853) (3"160) (8,622,573)

279,025 3,341 3,650,868

charge fоr the уеаr (1,208,143) (320,175) (867,942) (32"t29) (2,428,388)

Carrying amount at
31 DесеmЬеr2024 10,873,284 929,149 2,520,650 1з2,686 ,l4,455,769

Cost at 31 DесеmЬеr 2024
Accumulated depreciation and

amortisation

12,081,427 2,236,363 4,138,298 327,257 18,7s3,345

(1,208,143) (1,307,214) (1,617,648) (194,571) (4,327,576\

Саrryiпg amount at
31 December2024 10,873,284 929,149 2,520,650 132,686 14,455,769

Asseъ in Fчrпjtчrе
the fоrm of and office
right of use equipment

Vehicles Other Total

lп thousands of US Dol/aв

Cost at 31 DесеmЬеr2023 640 147 283 25 1,095
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation (256) (81) (80) ('l3) (430)

Carrying amount at
31 December2023 384 66 203 12 665

31

(5)

5

(25)

Additions 935
Disposal- Cost (640)
Disposal - Accumulated
depreciation 256
Depreciation and amortisation
charge forthe уеаr (94)

60
(23)

22

(67)

1

(1)

1

е\

1,о27
(669)

2в4

(188)

Саrryiпg amount at
31 December2024 841 1172 195 1"t 19

Cost at 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 935 173 з20 25 1,453
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation (94) (10'l) (125) ('l4) (334)

Carrying аmочпt at
31 December2024 841 72 195 11 1,119
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/,1 other assets

2024
Uzý,k

2023
UzS,k

2024
USD,k

2023
USD,k

other financial asseb
claims receivables
Loans to employees
Loans to companies

5,678,788
4,119,400

173,350

4,185,667
6,5,1,1,328

173,350
5,4з7,088

440
319

13

1,332

з24
504

13
421Other fi,21з,з25

Less: credit loss allowance /provision fог
imраirmепt (173,350) (,l73.з50) (,|3) (1з)

Total other financial assets 27,011,513 16"t 34,083 2,091 1,249
other non-financial аssеъ
Repossessed assets
Рrераid taxes and other contributions
Рrерауmепt to sчррliеrs
Рrераid expenses
Other

39,026,363
10,735,910
1,191,082

779,761
9,664,507

33,656,674
9,142,119
1,227,856

55,81,|
1,65,1,995

3,021
831
92
oU

74в

2,604
708
95
4

128
Total other non-financial asseъ 61,397,623 45,734,455 4,752 3,539
Total other assets 88,409,136 6,t,868,538 6,843 4,788

Loans to employees are long tetm loans ptoЙded to Company's employees at the interest tate of
1З.5%-1,7% (31 December 202\ 14Уо-17%). As at 31 December 2024 по collatetal was ohained for
loans to employees and по provision was recorded (As at 31 Decembet 2О2\ по collateral was ohained
for loans to employees and по provision was tecorded).

GeograpЫcal, curtency and matudty analysis of оthet assets afe disclosed in Note 24, ТЬе infotmation
on telated party balances is disclosed in Note 27.
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12 Borrowings

Вошойпgs were ptovided Ьу the folloйng parties:

РаЁiеs
2024

UzS,k
2023

UzS,k
2024

USD,k
202з

USD,k
National Bank of uzbekistan
lslamic Соrроrаtiоп of Development of
private sесtоr
KDB Вапk of Uzbekistan

Аsiап Development Bank
BPlFRANcE S.A.
Ечrореап Bank fоr reconstruction and
Development (USD)
Uzbek-Oman Investment Company LLC
АкА AUSFUHRKREDlT-GESEl lSснАFт
Ечrореап Bank fоr rесопstrчсtiоп and
Development (UZS)
AGR|F cooPERATlF U.A.
BLUEoRCHARD covlD-19 EMERG|NG &
FRONT|ER MARKETS MSME SUPPORT
FUND
BLUEORCHARD M|CROFlNANCE FUND
lNcoFlN lNсLUSlVE FlNANCE FUND SA
чзАкБ "DAVR - BANK"
AR|A SUG,URTA TASHKlLoT

178,575,в17

155,010,811

94,455,723

84,765,643

70,883,308

23,535,946

15,117,534

5,7о7,в23

4,409,052

3,305,489

58,000

34,520

1в2,428,875

183,ц2,17о
,l06,187,482

93,317,630

31,491,791

37,690"137

8,313,302

11,410,351

18,489,871

30,771,866

18,402,495

4,507,398

123,964

13,821 12,571

11,997 14,236

7 ,311 8,219
6,561 7,222

5,486 2,437

1,822

1,170 2,917
442 643

з41 883

256 1,431

4 2,382

- 1,424

- 349
_10
3-

Тhе Company's borrovzings afe denominated in the folloчzing curtencies:

2024
UzS,k

2023
UzS,k

2о24
USD,k

2023
USD,k

Total Borrowings

Borrowings dепоmiпаtеd iп:

US Dollars

uzbek soums
361"l31,612

198,136,723

451,235,478

211,529,363
27,950 34,924
15,335 16,372

EURo 76,590,93.1 44,312,49.1 5,928 3,430
635,859,266 707,077,332 49,213 54,725

As at 31 December 2024 borowing facilrtres comptised the following:

' Bottowings frоm National Bank of uzbeНstan are loans oыained through ctedit line with а credit
limit to thе amount equivalent to USD 20 million, сufrепсу equivalent оf UZS 224,509,2оо
tlrousand (at trХ tate as at З1 Decembet 2022), whiсh was оЫаiпеd fot financing putclrases оf
lease objects. Тhе credit line сап Ье dtawn only in UZS and can Ье used fоr Ъutd ..,tr.n.y
denominated leases thtough convetsion uzs to usD/EuR as well. Тhе loan tetm does not
exceed three yeats fоr each individual project. The repayment of the loan pdncipal is in equal
monthly instalments. Intetest fate оп tlris loan facility fanges beмeen 1,4о/о-2Зо/п р.а. subjeci to
CBU base tate.

' In accotdance чritlr the loan agreement dated 3 Маrсh 2017 beMeen thе Mrnistry of Fiпапсе оf tlre
Republic of UzbeНstan and Asian Development Bank (ADB), ADB issued а loan to the Republic
оf UzbeНstan fоr the putpose оf tlre ptoject named "Small Business Finance Ptoject" ptovided
that tlre Republic оf UzbeНstan issues а sub-loan to the Соmрапу based on tlre ptoject agfeement
dated 3 Ммсh 2017 beMeen ADB and the Company and а sub-loan agfeement dated 17 Мау 2О1,7
beмeen the Ministry оf Finance of the Republic of Uzbekistan and the Соmрапу. Bottowings
undef the sub-loan agfeement amounts to USD 10 mil]ion. The repayment of the ptincipal loan
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amount commenced in Novembet 2021 and is рауаЫе in 20 equal instalments оf USD 500
Йousand each. The intetest fate on Йis loan facility is at 1%{6 months LIBOR. Though the
intetest fate on Йis Ьоrrоuппg is lower thап thе аvеtлgе mafket rate, based on йе Company's
asseýslnent the interest rate of the Ьоrrоuriпg florn ADB rcflects а matket rate, as thе diTect
pufpose оf йis Ьоtrойпg is financing of печz leases. Тhе disbursement period of фе loan closed
пJwе2022,

' Borrowings ftom KDB Bank Uzbekistan are USD denominated loans, which were ohained for
financing purchases of lease objects. Тhе loan term does not exceed three yeats fot еасh indiйdual
project. Тhе tepayment of the loan principal is rrr equal monthly instalments. Indrйdual loans hаче
fixed intetest tate rапфg beмeen 7.50h to 80й per annum and floating interest fate fanging ffom
5.25"/о+6 mопйs SOFR to 5,7 5о/о*6 months SOFR.

' Bortowing from Eutopean Bank for Reconstruction and Development on the basis оf loan
agIeement signed in Мау 2019 constitutes loan facfity totalling USD 4 million. The disbursement
was in Мо tranches (Гtапсhе 1, Ttanche 2). Тhе fepayment оf the principal loan (Гtапсhе 2) shall
соmmепсе in August 2022 апd is payable rn 13 equal quаrtеф instalments оf USD 154 йousand
еасh. Тhе intetest tate оп this loan facility is 19.15% pef annum. Тhе Company must comply йй
Гrrrancial covenants as stipulated in Note 25.

' Boшowing ftоm Eutopean Bank fot Reconstrrrction and Development on the basis of loan
agIeement signed in Мау 202З constitutes loan facility totalling USD 3 million. Тhе repayment of
Йе рdпфаl loan amount commenced in Мау 2024 апd is рауаЫе in 5 equal half-year instalments
оf USD 600 thousand еасh. Тhе intetest fate on tЫs loan facility is 5.4%+6 months SOFR. Тhе
Company must comply with financial covenants as stipulated in Note 25,

' Borrowing ftom Афf Coopetatief U.A. on the basis of loan agteement sigrred in November 2022
constitutes USD 2 million. Тhе tepayment of principal loan аmоuпt shall commence in March
202З апd is рауаЫе ln 8 equal instalments of USD 250 thousand еасh. The interest fate оп this
loan facility is fixed at7 .0О/о per annum. Тhе last installment ,ý/as to Ье paid in December 2024,but
payment was made only 05 laпlaty 2025 with overdue. Тhе Company must соmрlу uzith financial
covenants as stipulated in Note 25.

' Bottouzings from Uzbek-Omon Investment Company LLC POIC) on the basis of loan
agfeements signed in Decembet 2024 constrtutes UZS 15 billlon which is рауаЬlе in Маrсh 2025.
Тhе interest rate on these 1оап facilities is 22О/о per annum.

' Вошочriпg ftom ICD on the basis оf loan agteement signed in September 2022 constitutes USD
15 mrllron. Тhе interest tate on tЫs loan facility is Гжеd at 5 years USD Mid-Sчrap Rate plus 5.0%
pef аппчm. Тhе Соmрапу must comply with financial covenantý as stipulated in Note 25.

' Botrowing ftom BPIFRANCE S,A. is EUR denominated loan, чzЫсh uzas ohained for financing
purchase оf lease object on the basis of loan agteement srgned in August 202З arrd constitutes
EUR 2,З58 Йousand. Тhе interest tate on tЫs loan facility is fixed at 4.42Оh pef annum.

' Borroчzing ftom АКА AUSFUHRKREDIT-GESEIISCHAFT is EUR denominated loan, wЫсh
чrаs obtained fot financing putchase of lease object on the basis of loan agfeement signed iп Match
2020 апd constitutes EUR 1,600 thousand. Тhе intetest fate on this loan facility is at
EUROBOR+1.85% рff аппum.

GeogtapЫca| cuкency, matufity and intetest tate analysis of bottowings ate disclosed in Note 24. ТЬе
information on telated party balances is disclosed in Note 27.
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'l3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The tаые below sets out an analysis оf net deы and the movements in the company's liabilities from
financing activities for each оf the periods presented. Тhе items of these liabilities afe those that ate
repotted as financing in the statement оf cash flочzs.

Liabjlities from financing activities
Borrowings,

lease liabiIities
and bonds

Воrrоwiпgs,
lease liabilities

апd bonds

Liabilities from financing activities at 1 January 2023
Net cash flows

lnterest paid

lnterest ассrчеd

552,098,943

154,978,389

(80,547,887)

71,253,074

42,7з1

11,995

(6,234)

5,5,t5

7199,294.81

activities December 2023 707,077,з32

(71,218,066)
(100,157,617)

86,507,367

54,725

(5,512)
(7,751)
6,695

Net cash flows
lпtеrеst paid
lnterest ассrчеd

13,650 1

activities at 31 December 2024
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14 Advances from !еssееэ

2024
UzS,k

2023
UzS,k

2024
USD,k

202з
USD,k

Advances frоm lessees as:
- Lease ргерауmепts 34,396,142 55,517,025 2,в62 4,297
Total advances from lessees 34,396,142 55,517,025 2,в62 4,297

Advances from lessees fepresent part оf equipment cost and lease payments fot leases rvhich had not
commenced as at the yeat end. According to the Company's policy on issue оf а new lease, lessees must
deposit certain amounts with the company ptior to commencement оf tlre lease. on commerrcement оf
the lease, these deposits ate adjusted against lessee's fututе lease payments.

Trade payables{5

2024
UzS,k

2023
UzS,k

2о24
USD,k

2023
USD,k

fоr lease 8, 29,625,064 663
Totaltrade payables 8, 29,625,064 663 2,293

Trlde рауаЫеs mainly consist of amounts рауаЫе fot purchased leased equipment to foteign suppliers
on lease objects.

{6 Other liabilities

2о24
UzS,k

2023
UzS,k

2024
USD,k

2023
USD,k

other financial liabiIities
Dividends payable 931
Other

12,028,569

11,538,541

5,782,477
2,11о,426

3,028

2,754,194
1,379,479

,t,818

784 70

I9IаlоthеЦiпапgi?l liabililies 13,128,608 906 784 1,016 70
Other non-fi папсiаl payables

Lease Iiabiliý
Тах payable

Salary payables

Salary related tax payable

5,114,222 893 396

Total other liabilites 10,1 56,497 3"t 39 786

448 212
163 107

11
other liabilities z qqд язд - ал о

Total other non-financial 27,429,3Об
liabilities

ц
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1Т Share capital

Authodzed and paid in capital at 31 Decembet 2024 consisted of 71,,4О7,762 shates йth а nominal
value оf UZS 1,513 pet shate, issued and fully paid in UZS (2023:1.1,,4о7,762 shares йth а nominal
value of UZS 7,513 per share, issued and fully paid in UZS), Additional paid in capital is attributed to
National Bank of UzbeНstan and Uzbek-Oman Investment Company ТТС aftet l,З16,76\ апd
2,692,120 additional shates wete putchased Ьу Ьоth parties in 2015 and2)22tespectively.

NчmЬеr of
ouЪtandng

shareý in
thousands

lssued Additional
share paid in
capital capital
UzS,k UzS,k

Total share
and paid in

capital
UzS,k

Notes fo the Fiпапсiаl statemenfs fоr the year ended З1 DесеmЬеr 2024

As at 3,t DесеmЬеr 2023 11.408 17 2599ц 127,568.637 144.828.581
at 31 December 2024

Number of
ouЪtandng

shares in
thousands

lssued
Share

capital
USD,k

Additional
paid in
capital
USD,k

Total share
and paid in

capital
USD,k

As at 3,1 DесеmЬеr 2023 11,4о8 1,336 9,873 11,209

Dividends declared duting 2024 апd 2О2З ate disclosed in Note 22. Iп accotdance чrith the Chatter оf
the company, ownership rs in dfuect propottion to the petcentage оf chMter capital contributed.

lnterest income and interest ехрепsеs on leases{8

2024 2023 2024
UzS,k Uzs,k USD,k

Net lnterest lncome on Leases
lnterest income - uzs denominated lease
lnterest income - usD denominated lease
lnterest iпсоmе - EuR denominated lеаsе

2023
USD,k

95,489,966 93,442,281 7,391 7,2з2
60,667,936 43"l88,469 4,695 з,з4з
11,174,454 6,762,358 864 522

|nterest income - RUB denominated lease 212 2,959 1 1

Total interest iпсоmе оп leases '|67,332,568 143,396,067 ,l2,95l ,11,098

lnterest ехрепsеs - UZS denominated lease (6,770,214) (3,05З,413) (524) (2з6)
lnterest expenses - USD denominated lease (5,369,729) (3,10'|,506) (416) (240)
lnterest expenses - EUR denominated lease (1,510,307) (3,102,672) (117) (240)
lnterest expenses - RUB denominated lease - (37,222) _ (з)
Total anterest expenses on leases
(Provision foil/Release of credit loss al|owance

Interest expenses on leases include intetest accrued on advances received ftom lessees befote lease
commencement.

зб

As at 3'l December 2024 1,|.408 1.336 9.87з
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{9 Other interest expense

2024
UzS,k

2023
UzS,k

2024 2023
USD,k USD,k

National Bank of uzbekistan
lslamic Corporation of Development of Private Sector
KDB Bank Uzbekistan - loans
Ministry of Fiпапсе Republic of Uzbekistan
Ечrореап Bank fоr Reconstruction апd Development
BPlFRANсE S.A.
Uzbek-Oman lnvestment Соmрапу LLC
BLUEoRсHARD covlD-19 EMERGING &
FRONT|ER MARKETS MSME SUPPORT FUND
BLUEORCHARD MlCROF|NANCE FUND
AGR|F cooPERATlF U.A.
АкА AUSFUHRKREDlT-GESEl lScHAFT
AR|A SUG,URTA TASHKlLoT
lNcoFlN lNCLUSlVE FlNANCE FUND SA
чзАкБ "DAVR _ BANK,
Other

38,47з,7о2
16,138,530

10,о79,827

6,175,221

4,938,067
3,134,798
2,789,315

1,676,859

609,412
461,7о4
258,329
81,572

1,10

827,385

26,114,906
,l,t,590,152

7,335,599

6,449,430

2,928,208
43,729

6,792,328

3,368,758

2,978 2,021
1,249 897
780 568
478 499
382 227
243 з
21в 52в

130 261

67 164

47 154
36 40
2о 15

6 102

05

862,536 2,122,231
1,993,752

522,в23
,l94,699

1,319,695

63,545
413,42о з2

Total interest expenses 86,507,367 71,253,074 6,695 5,515

The infotmation оп related pafty tfansactions is disclosed in Note 27.

Other operating iпсоmе2о

2о24
UzS,k

2023
UzS,k

2024
USD,k

2023
USD,k

репаltiеs оп overdue
Reimburse of lease expenditures
Gain оп disposal of equipment fоr lease

12,485,960 3,027,271 966 234
2,0в4,926 3,,131,315 160 242
1,в71,257 2,952,796 129 23о

оthеr iпсоmе 2,909,269 2,979,568 225 23о
Total other operating income 19,131,412 12,090,950 1,481 936

Gain on disposal of equipment fоt lease mostly consists оf
equipment to lessees.

realtzed ftom disposal of leasegamS
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21 Administrative and other operating expenses

2024
UzS,k

2023
[Jzs,k

2024
USD,k

2о2з
USD,k

Wages and salaries
Depreciation
lnsurance
Rent expense
professional service
Bank charges
vehicle mаiпtепапсе
Supervisory board rеmчпеrаtiоп
Business trip expenses
Representative and office expenditure
Advertising and marketing
utilities
Charity
communication
Training
Taxes

26,344,560
2,428,388
2,067,329
1 ,4,18"l 05
1,413,022
1,098,974

в41,219
501,533
479,435
376,762
305,565
173,487

102,171

69,476
20,000
13,810

23,198,078
2,445,685
,1,850,547

477,808
1,748"186

728,958

396,992
752,184
796,799

407,779
334,439
173,002

234,219
,t00,100

37,900
1,548

2,039
188

160

110
,l09

85
50
39
37
29
24
13

7

5
2

2
56,|

1,795

189

143
37

1з5
56
31

58
62
32

26
13
,l8

8

3

0
568оthеr expenses 7,251,068 7,344,085

Total administrative and other

22 Dividends

2024
UzS,k

2023
UzS,k

2024
USD,k

2023
USD,k

Dividends payable at,l January
Dividends declared during the уеаr 22,633 000 17,739,070 1,752 1,373
Dividends 10,604 431 7,

Dividends at 31 12,028 569
Dividends реr share declared during the уеаr 1,984 1,555 0.15 0.12
Nчmьеr of shares

All dividends are declated and paid in uzs ot in usD equivalent on the ttansaction date.
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23 lпсоmе taxes

(а) Components of income tax

Income tax expense is comprised of йе following:

2024
UzS,k

202з
UzS,k

2024
USD,k

2023
USD,k

сurrепt tax
Deferred tax

9,487,201 6,892,126 7з4

2024
USD,k

534

15оlф. А

2023
USD,k

1 1,751
7,1 0 555

(ь) Reconciliation between the tax expense and profit ot loss mчlфliеd Ьу applicable tax tate

Тhе income tax fate applrcable to the income оГ the Company iп 2024 is 15% (2О2З:
teconciliation beМeen the expected and the actual taxation charge is ptovided below.

2024
UzS,k

2023
UzS,k

рrоfit Ьеfоrе tax
Theoreticaltax charge at statutory rаtе
(2024: 1 5%: 2023:1 5О/о)

тах effect of items which аrе not
deductible оr assessable fоr taxation
purposes:

48,78l,100
7,317,1в5

51,867,483
7,780J22

3,77в
566 602

- |n"om" rhi"h is 
"rempt 

fror ta*ation j119:839] (1:199,747) (11) (90)
,l70,336 6,610,37@

ц]
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24 Financial risk mапаgеmепt

The dsk management function wiйin the Company is carried out йЙ fespect to financial dsks,
opetational dsks and legal dsks. Financial dsk compdses matket dsk (including ..rtt.r.y fisk, intefeýt
rate tisk and othet price dsks), ctedit dsk and liquidity risk. Тhе ptimary function of financial dsk
management is to establish dsk limits and to ensure that any exposufe to tisk stays within these limits.
The opetational and legal tisk management functions ate intended to ensure the proper functioning of
intetnal pol_icies and procedures in order to minimize opetational and legal dsks.

ctedit dsk. Тhе company takes on exposufe to ctedit dsk, чzhiсh is the tisk that one pafty to а
financial insttument will cause а Гtnancial loss for tъе other patty Ьу failing to dischatge ап bbligation.
Exposute to credit risk arises as а tesult of the company's leasing and othg ttansactioni йй
counterpatties giving dse to Гrпапсiаl assets and off-balance sheet ctedit-telated commitments.

тhе company's maximum exposufe to ctedit risk is reflected in the catrying amountý of financial assets
in the statement of financial position.

credit risk management. ctedit tisk is the single largest risk fot thе company's business; management
йetefote catefully manages its exposure to cfedit fisk.

Тhе estimation of credit dsk fot tisk managemefit pufposes is complex and involves the use оf models,
as the tisk vмies depending on market conditions, expected cash floчzs and the passage of time. Тhе
assessmefit of ctedit dsk for а portfolio of assets entails further estimations of the likeliБood оf defaults
occutring, йе associated loss tatios and default cottelations ЬеМееп countefpafties.

Limits. Тhе Соmрапу structufes the levels of credit dsk it undettakes Ьу placing limits оп the amount оf
risk accepted in relation to опе lease, ot gfoups оf leases. Such risks are monitbted on а tevolving basis
and ate subject to an annual, of mofe ftequent, tevie.w.

тhе Соmрапу has supervisory Board uzhich is tеsропsiые fоr apptoving leases above а certain ctedit
limit fot individual borrowers:

- Leases of USD 600 000 (or its equivalent in other cuttencies) or less afe approved Ьу the
tesolution of Genetal Director and the Investment Committee of the Соmрапу,

- LeaSeS gteatef than USD 600 000 (ot its equivalent in othg cuttencies) are appfoved Ьу the
supervisory Boatd, subject to the recommendation of the General Dilectot and the Investment
Committee оf the Соmрапу.

Lease applications originated Ьу the Investment Department ate passed on to the Investment
Committee for apptoval of йе credit limit. Exposute to cfedit dsk is аhБ managed, in patt, Ьу oЫaining
collateral and corporate and personal guafantees. In order to monitot ctedii risk .*porrri.r, tegulai
f€polts are ptoduced Ьу the Monitoring and Risks Department's officers based оп а sttuctцred апфsis
focusing оп йе customet's business and Гrпапсiаl perfotmance. Any significant exposure fюm
customefs йth detetiotating ctediMotthiness is tepotted to, and revieчzed Ьу, I.rrr.rt-eni committee.
тhе Соmрапу does not use fotmalized intetnal ctedit tatings to monitor .*ро.rrr. to ctedit dsk.

Тhе Company's Monitodng and Risks Department tevievrs aging analysis of outstanding leases and
follows up on past due balances. Management, thetefote, considers it apptoptiate to рrочidЪ ageing and
other information about ctedit risk as disclosed in Note 7.

ctedit dsk grading system. Fot measuting credit tisk and gtading financial instruments Ьу the amount of
ctedit tisk, the company applies Мо appfoaches - an age-based tating system or tisk gtades estimated
Ьу external intetnational rating agencies (Standatd & Poor's - "S&Ъ,;, Fitch, MooJy's). Дgе-Ьаsеd
ratings and extetnal ctedit tatings ate mapped on an intetnally defined mastef scale йtЬ а s"pecified
tange of ptobabilities of default.
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Тhе age-based tattng System is designed rntemally. Тhе Company applies age-based tating systems for
measuring credit tisk fot the following financial aSSetS: leases, loan to oih., .о-рапiЙ, and other
financial assets.

тhе tating models ate tеgulаф teviewed Ьу thе Investment committee, back tested оп actual default
data and updated, if necessary. Despite the method used, the Company tegulMly validates the accuracy
of ratings estimates and apptaises tlre ptedictive powef оf the modeis.

Fxtetnal tatings are assigned to countelpatties Ьу independent international rating agencies, such as
S&P, Moody's and Fitch. These ratings ate publicly ачаilаЫе. Suсh tatings and tlre Йr.i.ро.dirg rапgе
of ptobabilities of default ("PD,) afe applied for the following financial insttuments: cash and cash
equivalents, due frоm the bank's balances, and testticted cash,

Expected credit loss (ECL) meaýufement. ECL is а probability-weighted estimate оf the ptesent
value оf futurе cash shortfalls (i.e., tlre weighted avefage Ъf ctedit losses" йth the respective risks оf
default occuring in а gven time period used as weights). Ап EcL measufement is unbiased and is
determined Ьу evaluating а fange оf роssiые outcomes. EcL measufement is based on four
components used Ьу thе Соmрапу: Ptobabilrty оf Default ("PD,), Exposure at Default ("ЕДD'), Loss
Given Default ("LGD") and Discount Rate.

EAD is ап estimate оf exposure at а Гututе default date, taНng into account expected сhапgеs in the
exposure аftеr thе teporting petiod, including fepayments оf principal and interest, and expected
dtaч,downs on committed facrlrtles, Тhе EAD on credit telated .Бm-iim..rts is estbated usingЪreclit
Conversion Factot ("ссF,). ССF is а coefficient that shочzs the probability оf convetsion оf thе
commitment amounts to an on-balance sheet exposufe within а defined petiod. pD i, un estimate of the
[kelihood оf default to occur ovef а given time petiod. LGD is an estimate оF the loss arising оп
default. It is based on the diffetence between the contfаctual cash flows due and йоsе that the lйdеt
would expect to teceive, including ftоm any collateral. It is usually expressed aS а pefcentage оf the
EAD. Тhе expected losses are discounted to pfesent value at thе enJ оf thе ,"poit rrg period. Тhе
discount fate fepresents the effective interest rate ("EIR') fot the fiпапсiаi insttument of an
approximation thereof.

Expected ctedit losses ate modelled ovet insttument's Iifetime petiod. Тhе lifetime pedod is equa1 to the
remaining contractual petiod to matutity of deЫ insttuments, adjusted for expectejpr"p^y-.rrts, if any.

Management models Lifetrme ECL, that is, losses that result from а11 роssiЫе default events over the
rc_maining ]ifetime period of the financial instrument. The 12-month EcL, tepfesents а pottion оf
lifetime EcLs that tesult from default events оп а financial insttument that ate роssiые rvithin 12
months aftet the reporting petiod, ot temaining lifetime period of the Гtnancial instrument if it is less
than а yeat.

Тhе ECLs йаt are estimated Ьу management for the putposes оf these financial Statements ate point-
in-time estimates, fathef than through-the-cycle estimaies that afe commonly used fоr regjatory
purposes. Тhе estimates consider forwмd looНng infotmation, that is, EiLs teflect рrЙuЬrfiф
weighted development оf key macroeconomic чаtiаыеs that hаче an impact оп credit risk.

Tlre ECL modelling does not diffо fоr Putchased ot Originated Ctedit Impaited ("POCI') ГtпапсiаI
assets, except that (а) gtoss саtфпg value and discount fate afe based bn cash floчzs that vzete
tесоvеtаЫе at initial recopition оf thе asset, fathef than based оп contfactual cash flows, and (Ь) the
ECL is always а lifetime ECL. POCI assets afe financial assets that are ctedit-impaited.rporr'initiol
tecognition.

Fot purposes оf measuting pD, thе Соmрапу dегtпеs default as а siruation whеп йе exposttte meets
one of mote оf tlre folloчzing criteria:

' Тhе borrower is more tlran 90 days past due on its contfactual payments.
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Restrцctuting of йе teceivables due to deteriotation of the financial position of the borrowet,
wЫсh includes folloЙng resffuctudng tetms:

- Ptovision оf deferral оf intetest fepayment fot а petiod exceeding 90 days апd/ ot;
- А сhапgе in the tepaymefit schedule of the ptincipal deы, in wысh the total payments iп йе

next 12 months are teduced Ьу mote than 507о compared to the original fepayment schedule
апd/оt;

- Extension of. the 1оап agteement Ьу mote йап 12 months in compadson йth йе original
maturity and/or;

- Amendments to йе repayment schedule of the body ot interest and/or intetest tate, as а tesult
of uzысh the ptesent value of contractual cash floтrs undet а modified conttact, is more than
107о lowet йап the pfesent value of cash flows undш the otiginal tetms of the contfact.

. Initiation of а banlcuptcy ot banktuptcy of а deЫot.

, presence оf an event of impaitment (default) at the tepotting date, чzhiсh affected the
classification of othet financial insttuments of the dehot in the Company as Stage 3.

: Initiation/pfes_:nce of legal ptoceedings on the bottowef's deЬt to the Company (Company
being both as а plaintiff and а defendant).

For putposes оf disclosure, the Соmрапу fully aligned the definition оf default йй the definition of
credit-impaited assets. The default definition stated above is applied to all types of financial assets of the
Company (except fot those to Ье assessed based on external iлirrg, and/ot-assessed thtough simplified
method of testing).

An instrument is consideted to по longer Ье in default (i.e. to hаче cured) vчhеп it no longer meets апу
of йе default critetia for а consecutive period оf six months. This pedod of six mопйs has been
detetmined based оп an analysis that considefs the like]ihood of а Гйапсiаl instnrment returning to
default status aftet cuting Ьу using different роssiые definitions of cutes.

Тhе assessment of uzhether ot not there has been а significant incease in ctedit tisk (..SICR') since
initial rccognition is petfotmed оп an individual basis und оr, а portfolio basis. Fоr lease rесеiчаыеs and
other financial assets, SICR is assessed eithc on а portfolio ЬаЪis ot an individual basis, depending on
йе sipificance thteshold. Тhе cdteria used to identiф а SICR are monitoted and reviewed periodi"cally
for apptop_tiatenesý Ьу the company's monitodng department. The presumption, being thaithere havb
been signiгrcant incteases in ctedit risk since initial tecognition when financial assets a-re mote than з0
days past due, has not been tebutted.

Тhе Company decided not to use the low ctedit dsk assessment exemption for investment grade
financial assets. Непсе, еvеп assets of an investment gtade ate assessed чrhейеt thete has been а sIcR.

The company considers а financial instrument to hаче expedenced an sIcR when one of mote of the
following quantitative, qualitative or backstop criteria hачеъееп met.

Fot lease tесеiчаыеs and ойеt financial assets;

. 30 days past due;

. award of dsk gtade "Special monitoring'';

, sIcR based on relative thteshold based оп external ratings. Тhе folloйng thtesholds are used
for external ratings: decrease of tating Ьу 2 notches, which coшesponds to apptoximate increase оf pD
Ьу 2.5 times.

тhе level of EcL that is recognized in йеsе financial statements depends on whethet the credit dsk of
the botrowet has increased sipificantly since initial tecognition. Тйъ is а three-stage model fot EcL
measufement. А Гrпапсiаl instrument йаt is not ctedit-impaited on initial tecognition and its ctedit dsk
has not incteased sipificantly since initial recognition hаъ а ctedit loss allowa'nce based on 12-month
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ECl,s (Stage 1). If а SICR since initial recognition is identlfied, the financial insttument is moved to
stage 2 but is not yet deemed to Ье ctedit-impaired and the loss allovzance is based on lifetime EcLs. If
а financial instrument is credlt-impaited, the financial instrument is moved to stage 3 and loss allowance
is based on lifetime EcLs. Тhе consequence оf an asset being in stage 3 is thlt the entity ceases to
recognize intetest iпсоmе based on gross carrying value and applies the asset's efгective intetest rate to
the саrфпg amount, net оf ECL, wlren calculating interest income.

If there is evidence that the SICR criteria afe no longer met, the instrrrment is ttansfetred back to Stage
1. If an exposufe has been transfetred to Stage 2 based on а qualitative indicatot, tlre Compaiy
monitots whеthg thаt indicatot continues to exist ot bas changed.

ECL fоt POCI financial assets is always measured on а lifetime basis. Тhе Соmрапу thereГore only
tecognizes thе cumulative changes rrr ]rfetime expected ctedit losses.

Тhе Соmрапу has thtee approaclres fоr ECL measufement: (i) assessment оп an indivrdual basis; (ii)
assessment оп а pottfol_io basis: tatings-based aging оf ovetdue ate estimated оп an individual basis but
thе same credit tisk parameters (e,g., PD, LGD) will Ье applied dudng the process оf ECL calculations
fоt the same ctedit risk tatings; and (iф assessment based on extetnal tatings. Тhе Соmрапу performs
an assessment on а portfolio basis Гоr lease rесеiчаыеs, loan to employees and othet financial assets.

EcL assessment on ап individual basis is реrfоrmеd Ьу vzeighting thе estimates оf credit losses fоr
diffetent роssiые outcomes against the рrоъаьilitiеs оf each ЪutсJmе. Тhе Соmрапу defines at least
мо роssiые outcomes fоr еасh assessed financial assets, опе оf which leads to а credit loss ечеп if the
probability оf such а scenMio may Ье very lоw' Individual assessment is рrimаtф based on the expert
iudgement оf expetienced officets from the Monitoring department. Expett judgements are rеguЙrlу
tested in ordet to decrease thе difference between estimates and actual losses,

In genetal, ECL is thе sum of the multiplications оf the folloчzing ctedit risk parametets: EAD, PD and
LGD, that are dегrпеd as explained above, and discounted to pfesent value using the instrument's
effective intetest rate. Тhе ECL is detetmined Ьу predictrng ctedit risk parametets (ЕдD, PD and LGD)
fоt еасh future yeat duting the lifetime period fоr eaclr individual exposlrfe or collective segment. These
three components afe multiplied togethш and adjusted fot the likelihood оf survival (i.e. the exposufe
has Ьееп repaid ot defaulted in ап eatLier month). This еffесtlчеlу calculates an EcL fot еасh fututе
period, that is then discounted back to the tepotting date and summed up. Tlre discount rate used in tlre
EcL calculation is the origlnal effective intetest rate of an apptoximation tlreteof.

The key ptinciples of calculating the ctedit risk patametets. The EADs are detetmined based on
thе expected payment ptoгtle, that varies Ьу product type. EAD is based on the сопtrасtuаl Iepayments
oчzed Ьу the borrowef ovef а 12-month or lifetime basis fot amottizing ptoducts. Тhъ will also Ье
adjusted fot any expected oveчpayments made Ьу а bortower.

Two фреs of PDs ate used fot calculating ECLs: 12-month and lifetrme PD, Ап assessment оГ а'|,2-
mопth pD is based on the latest ачаilаые histotic default data and adjusted for suрроttаые forward-
looНng infotmation whеп approptiate. Lifetime pDs teptesent the estimated pt"bubitity of а default
occuffing ovef the temaining lifе оf the financial insttument and it is а sum оf tйе 12 months pDs over
thе life оf thе instrument.

LGD represents the company's expectation оf the extent of loss on а defaulted exposute. LGD varies
ьу thе ýре оf countelparty, type and seniodty of the claim, and the availability оf collatetal or othet
ctedit support. Тhе 12-month and lifetime LGDs are detetmined based on the factots that impact the
expected fecovefies aftet а default event, Тhе apptoach to LGD measufement can Ье divided into three
роssiЫе approaches:

' mеаSцfеmепt of LGD based on the specific charactetistics оf the collateral;

' calculation оf LGD on а pottfolio basis lэased оп Iесочеrу statistics; or

' individually defined LGD depending on diffetent factors and scenatios.
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Тhе Company calculates LGD based on specific chatacteristics of the collatetal, such as ptojected
collatefal values, histotical discounts on sales and othet factots for loans secured Ьу rеа1 estate, саsъ and
liquid securities, LGD is calculated оп а collective basis based on the latest аr.аilаЫе Iесочеlч statrstics
for the temainder оf thе lease portfoJio.

principles of assessment based on extefnal tatings. certain exposufes hаче extetnal ctedit risk
tatings, and these are used to estimate ctedit tisk pafametefs pD and LGD ftоm tlre default and
fecovefy statistics published Ьу the respective rating agencies.

Forwatd-looНng information incorpotated in the ECL models. Тhе assessment оf SICR and thе
calculation of ECLs both incotpofate SuрроrtаЫе fotward-looНng information. Тhе Company
identified cettain key economic чаtiаыеs that cotrelate with developments in ctedit risk and B-crr.
Forecasts оf economic vadables (thе "base economic Sceflafiolt) are provided Ьу the Company's
monitoring team and ptovide the best estimate оf the expected macto-economic development очеr the
next three years.

In additron to the base economic scenario, thе Company's Monitoring depмtment also ptovides оthеr
possible scenarios along with scenario weightings. Тhе numbet оf scenarios and theit attributes afe
teassessed at еасh teporting date. Тhе scenatio weightings are determined Ьу а combination оf statistical
analysis and expett credit judgement, taНng into account the tange оf роssiые outcomes оf which еасh
chosen scenario is tepresentative,

тhе company tegularly teviews its metlrodology arrd assumptions to reduce any difference Ьемееп the
estimates and the actual loss of ctedit. such backtesting is petfotmed at least опсе а yeaf,

Тhе results оГ backtesting the ECL measurement methodology afe communicated to Company's
Management and futthef steps fоr tuning models and assumptions are defined after discuisions
between authotized petsons.

Management petiodically aSSeSSes the financial petformance of lessees Ьу monitoting deЬts outstanding
and analyzing theit financial fepofts.

The Company's policies tegarding ohaining collateral hаче not signiГrcantly changed dudng thе
reporting petiod and thete has Ьееп no significant change in the ovetall quality of the cblatetal held Ьу
the Соmрапу since the pdor period.

Market risk. Тhе Company takes on ехроSufе to matket dsks. Matket risks arise ftom open positions
in (а) cutrency, and (ь) intetest fates, all оf which ate exposed to genetal and spbcifii market
movements. Management sets limits on the value оf tisk that may Ье accepted, which is monitored оп а
quartetly basis. Howevet, tlre use оf this apptoach does not pfevent losses outside оf these limits in the
event оf more sipificant mafket movements.

Curtency tisk, Тhе Соmрапу takes on exposufe to effects of flucruations in thе prevailing foteign
cur:tencY exchange fates on its financial position and cash flows. То minimize foreign Ъrr.r".riу
fluctuation risks related to lease tесеiчаыеs, the company concludes lease contracts denominated in
usD and EuRo, which lease payments should Ье settled in uzs Ьу using intetbank exchange fate on
thе date оf payment.



Nofes fo the Fiпапсiаl statements fоr the year ended З1 December 2024
JSc "UZBEK LEASING //чIЕRNдг/ол/А L д,о.,

тhе table below summarizes the company's exposute to fоrеigп cuffency exchange tate tisk as at 31
December 2024 апd2O2З:

31 December2024 3l December202}
Monetery

lп thоusапds financial financial

486,586,299 (369,522,406)

88,з66,742 (76,762,912)

Monetary Net balance Monetary Monetary lrtet ЬаЬпсе

of UZS assets liabilities position asseb liabitities position
sheet financial financial sheet

,l 
1 7,063,893 329,072,300 (448,1 04,990) (1 19,о32,690)
11,603,830 52,6в8,474 (76,474,265) (23,7в5,792)

US Dollars
Ечrоs
Rubles 4,272 1,247 1,247

Total sz+,958,szз (с+6,z85,зlв) 1zB,6zз,2ss з8l,zoz,Ozo (szc,szg,zss) (r+z,вlz,zзs)

3,1 December 2024 31 December2023

/п fhоиsапds financial financial sheet financiai financiai sheet
of USD asseЪ liabilities position asseЪ liabilities position
US Dollars з7,66О (2s,6оо) 9,06О 25,469 (з4,6s2) (9,21з)Euros 6,sз9 (5,941) 898 4,о78 (5,919) (1,s41)Rubles1-11-1
Pounds1-1-
Total 44,50,t (з4,541 ) 9,96о 29,548 (40,601) (1,1 ,05з)

The above analysis includes only monetary assets and liabdities. Non-monetaly assets afe not consideted
to give rise to cuttency dsk.

Тhе following tаЫе pfesents sensitivities оf ptofit or loss and equity to teasonably роssiЫе changes in
ехсhапgе tates appJied at the end оf the teporting period telative to the functional cuftency ог tb"
Соmрапу, with all other чаdаЫеs held constant:

31 December2024 31 December2023

lmpact оп profit оr lmpact оп profit or

4,272

1.260

Iп thоusапds of
US Dollars strengthening Ьу 14О/о (202З: l4О/о)
US Dollars weakening Ьу 14О/о (2О23: 14О/о)

Ечrо strengthening Ьу 12О/о (2023: 12О/о)

Ечrо weakening Ьу 12% (2023:12О/о)
Ruble strengthening Ьу 12О/о (2023:12О/о)
Ruble weakening Ьу 12О/о (2023:12%)
Pounds strengthening Ьу 12О/о

]oss and
13,930,603

(,l3,930,603)
1,183,591

(1,183,591)
436

(436)

129

loss and
(14"l64,890)

14,164,890
(2,426,151)

2,42в,151
127

(127)

31 DесеmЬеr2024 31 December2023

lmpact on profit оr lmpact оп profit оr
ofUSD

US Dоllаrs strengthening Ьу 14% (202314О/о)
US Dollars weakening Ьу 14О/о (2О23:14О/о)
Euro strengthening Ьу 12О/о (2023:12%)
Ечrо weakening Ьу 12% (2023:12О/о)
Ruble strengthening Ьу 12% (2023:12О/о)
Ruble weakening Ьу 12% (2023:12О/о)

Pounds strengthening Ьу 12О/о

Pounds weakening Ьу 12%

loss and
,1,078

(1,078)
92

(92)
1

(1)

1

(1)

(1,096)
1,096
(188)

188
1

(,]

тhе exposufe was calculated only fot monetafy balances denominated in curtencies other than the
funcdonal cuffency оf the Соmрапу.

Pounds



Notes fo the Fiпапсiаl statements fоr the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024
JSc "UZBEK LЕдS/NG INтЕRNдтIоNдL д.о."

Intetest tate tisk. Тhе Соmрапу takes on exposufe to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels
оf market interest fates on its financial position and cash flows. Interest margins mау increase as а tesult
оf such changes but may teduce of cfeate losses in йе event that unexpectej movements atise.
Management monitofs on а daily basis and sets limits on the level оf mismаtсй of intetest fate tepticing
that mау Ье undetaken.

Financing of lease tесеiчаЫеs is рdmаrф provided Ьу the Company's capital and Ьоttоuлiпgs ftom the
International and domestic financial institutions. Intetest rates оf intetnational and domestic financial
institutions are eithg fixed or linked to LIBOR and EURIBOR. Тhе effective interest fate on thе leases
temains fixed fot the lease tetm. As а tesult, thе company is exposed to fait value interest rate risk.

Тhе tаЫе below summarizes the Company's exposufe to intetest rate fisks. Тhе tаЫе ptesents the
aggregated amounts оf the Company's financial assets and liabilities at carrying amountý, caiegotized Ьу
the earliш of contractual interest repricing of matufity dates:

Demand and Frоm 12 Моге
lп thousands less than 1 Frоm 1 to 3 Frоm 3 to 12 months to 5 Frоm 5 to than 10
gt u_zs month months months years 10 years years Total
з,l ое
2024
Total financial
assets 62,574,017 в5,123,2з4
Total financial

227,748,502 467,7оо312 ,181 
,837 - 823,328,401

liiЧiЦtigs 26,333,9s2 цz,l00,+д+ l0z,g+з,вв+ зво,оза,zоо lg,зво,zzо - озs,вsg,zоо
Net interest
sensitivity

ln thousands
Demand and

less than 1 Frоm 1 to 3
months

31 DесеmЬеr
2023
Total fiпапсiаl
assets 49,981,542 66,361,640 225,2эв,о29
Total financial

liзЧilitigs 27,784,668 oо,sв+,вцz zдg,zsо,оgz ззg,ввz,аsz zg,szо,zоз - zоz,оzz,ззz
Net interest
sensltiviý
8чrрlчý 22,196,874 5,776,79з (24,012,068} 19,839,з93 (29,373,437) - (5,572,445l

Demand and Frоm 12 Моrе
lп thousands less than 1 Frоm 1 to 3 Frоm 3 to monthý to 5 Frоm 5 to 10 than 10
of usD month months 12 months years years уеаrs Total

2024
Total financial
aýSets
Total financial

- бэ,722

liabilities 2,03s 3,264 12,998 29,413 .l ,50о - 49,2.13
Net interest
sensitivity
surplus 2,805 ,| ,776 4,629 6,785 (1,486) - 14,509

Demand and From 12 Моге
lп thousands less than 1 Frоm 1 to 3 Frоm 3 to months to 5 Frоm 5 to 10 than 10
of usD month months ,l2 months years years years Total

202з
Total financial
assets 3,868 5,1зб 17,4зз 27,842 15 _ 54,294
Total financial
liabilities 2,150 4,689 19,291 26,3об 2,289 - 54,725ы
sensitivity

5toFrоm
10v

359,726,850 196,825 - 701,504,887

4,843 5,040 17,627 36,198 14

sчrр]чs 1,718 447 (,1,858) 1,536 Q.274l. (431)



Nofes fo the Fiпапсiаl statements fоr the уеаr епdеd 31 December 2024

JSc,UZBEK tЕАS/NG lNтЕRNдтIоNдL д,о."

тhе company monitofs intetest tates fot its financial instruments. Тhе table below summafizes interest
fateý at thе tespective tepotting date based on fepofts teviewed Ьу key management personnel.

тhе sign "-" in thе tаые below means that the company does not have the tespective assets of liabilities
in thе cortesponding cuffency.

2024 2023

Lease rесеiчаьlеs
оthеr financial assets

2%-78%

1з.5%-17%
9%-50% 9%-35% 9о/о-24о/о9о/о-22Yо 2%-70%

- 14о/о-17о/о

Liabilities
Вопоwiпgs:
Loan frоm National Bank of
uzbekistan
European Bank for
Reconstruction and
Development
Loan frоm АКА
AUSFUHRKREDlT
GESEllScHAFT
Fiпапсiпg frоm lslamic
Соrроrаtiоп of Development
of private sector

Asian Development bank

Loan from KDB Bank
uzbekistan
Loan from Uzbek-Omon
lnvestment Соmрапу
AGR|F cooPERATlF U.A.
lNcoFlN lNcLUSlVE
F|NANCE FUND SA
чзАкБ,DАVR - BANK,
ЯКl(AСАРАЙСКИЙ
ФилиАл
Blue оrсhаrd lnvest S.а.r.l,
Blue оrсhаrd Мiсrоfiпапсе
fund
BPlFRANCE S.A,
AR|A SUG,URTA

14Yо-23о/о

19.15% 5.4%+SоFR

EURlBOR+- 
1.85о/о

5 years USD
- Mid_Swap Rate

+ 5о/о

SoFR- 
бm+о.6%

- 5.25o/o-8Yo

22о/о

- 7о/о

4.42%

14%-23%

12,3%-
19,15%

20о/о-22%

5 years
USD Mid-

Swap
Rate + 5%

SoFR
бm+0.6%

5,25о/о-8о/о

6.3о/о-7о/о

8%

6,7о/о

6,7%

EURlBo
R+ 1.85%

5,6о/о-7о/о

Ё

Ё



Jsc "UZBEK LEAS/NG INтЕRNдтIоNдL д,о.,
Notes fo the Fiпапсiаl stafemenfs for the year ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Geogtaphical tisk concentfations. The geogtaphical concenftation of йе Company's assets and
liabilities at 31 December 2О24 is set out below:

49

Cash and cash equivalents
Lease receivables
other fiпапсiаl assets

7,972,з93
819,248,438
27,011

7,972,393
819,248,438
27,011,513

Tota] financial assets
Non-financial
Total assets
Llabil]ties
Borrowings
Тrаdе payables

-1
-1

372,949,037
5,945

107,899,4,18

1,696,997
155,010,8,11

6,865,779
635 859,266

8 568,721
other fi nancial liabilities
Total financial l

13,1 131
657161

Non-financial
Totalliabilities 4+Z,909,038 lOg,SgO,+tS tOt,8ZOý90 Z19 382,0+3
Net Ьаlапсе sheet position 568,730,793 (109,596,415) (161 ,876,590) 2g7 257 ,7s8

Cash and cash equivalents
Lease receivables
Other

Total financial assets
asseъ

617
63,407

091

115

617
63,407

091

115

12,570
assets

Liabilities
Воrrоwiпgs
Тrаdе payab|es

28,865
1

8,351

"1

1 1,997
u,1

49,213
663

other financial
1

Total financial

Total liabilities

oEcD Total

Total



50JSc "UZBEK LЕдS/лJG /NтЕRNАI/ол/дI д.о,"
Nofes to the Financial statements for the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

ц
тhе geographical concentration of йе company's financial assets and liabiliues at 31 Decembet 2о2з is
set out below:

lп thousands of UZS Uzbekisten OECD Non-OECD
Аssеъ
Cash and cash equivalents
Lease rесеiчаьlеs
оthеr fiпапсiаl assets

2,9,|8,9,14
694,999,474

,l6,134,083

2,918,914
694,999,474

16.1з4.08з
Totalfinancialasseb 7{4,052,471 - - 7{4,052,47l
Non-financial asseъ 366,603,471 - 366.6оз-471
Total assets 1,080,655.942 1,080.655.942
Liabilities
Воrrоwiпgs
Trade payables
оthеr fi папсiаl liabilities

399,748,088
28,578"l02

906,784

123,387,о74
197,371_

1 83,942,1 70
849,591

707,077,3з2
29,625,064

906,784
Total fi nancial liabi]ities 429,232,974 123,584,445 184,791.761 737.609.,180
Non-financialliabilities 64,766,738 64.766.7ЗS
Totalliabilities 493,999,712 123,584,445 184,791,761 802.375.918
Net Ьаlапсе sheet position 586,656,230 (123,584,445) (184,79,t,761) 278,28о,о24

ln thousands of usD Uzbekistan OECD Non-OECD
! Аssеъ

Cash and cash equivalents
Lease receivables
оthег financial aSSetS 1.250 1 )Бо
Total financial аssеъ 55,266 - - 55,266

Total assets
Liabilities
Воrrоwiпgs
Тrаdе payables
other financial liabilities

226
53,791

30,9з9
2,212

70

9,550
,:

14,236
оо

- 226
- 53,791

54,725
2,293

70

Nоп-fiпапсiаl assets 28.374 2а-з7д

лt

Total fi nancial liabilities
Non-financial liabilities 5,0l з

57,
5.013

Total !iabilities 38,234 62,101

a-,

ý

Net Цаlапсе sheet position 45,405 (14.302) 21,538

Assets and liabilities have been based оп the countty, in which the counterparty is located. Balances
wrth UzbeНstan countefparties асtuаllу outstanding to/ftom offshore companies оf these Uzbek
counterpatties, are allocated to the caption "UzbeНstan".

Liabilitres in OECD counfties include bottovrings and рауаЫеs in companies and financial institutions
оf Italy, the Poland and thе Netherlands.

Liabilities in non-OECD countries include рауаЫеs in companies and financial institutions оf йе China
and Turkey.

Liqutdity nsk. Liquldity dsk is the dsk that an entity will encountet difГrculty in meeting obligations
associated with financiaI liabr]rties. Тhе Company does not maintain cash resoutces to meet all of these
needs as experience shows that а minimum level of teinvestrnent of matming funds can Ье predicted
Йth а high level of cettainty. Liquidity risk is managed Ьу Finance and Adminrsttation Department оf
Йе Company thtough tegular monitoring and liqЙdity stress testing undet the vмiety of scenarios
covering ЬоЙ normal and more severe market conditions.



Nofes fo the Fiпапсiаl staleme,?tý for the year ended З1 DесеmЬеr 2024
Jsc "UZBEK LЕдs/NG lNтЕRNдтIоNдL д,о,"

Тhе table below shows liabilities at 31 Decembet 202З Ьу theit remaining contfactual matutiф. Тhе
amounts of liabilities disclosed in the mаtudф tаые are the contractual unйscounted cash flows. such
undiscounted cash flows differ ftom the amoulrt included in the statement оf financial position because
the amount in the statement оf financial position is based оп discounted cash flows.

m.-1 
. 
the amount рауаые is not fixed, the amount disclosed is determined Ьу refetence to the

conditions existing at the end of the tepotting petiod. Foteign cuffency payments ate translated using
the spot exchange tate at the end of йе teporting period,
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Notes fo the Fiпапсiаl statements fоr the year епdеd 31 DесеmЬеr 2024
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25 Gontingencieý and commitmentý

Legal proceedings. From time to time and in the normal coutse of business, claims against the Company
may Ье teceived. On the basis of its own estimates and both internal and extetnal ptofessional advice,
management is оf thе opinion that no material losses will Ье incurted in tespect оf claims, and
accordingly по provision has been made in these financial statements.

тах contingencies. The taxation system in the Republic of uzbeНstan continues to evolve and is
charactetized Ьу ftequent changes in legislation, official pfonouncements and court decisions, which are
sometimes conttadictory and subject to чафпg interpretation Ьу different tax authorities,

Taxes ate subject to review and investigation Ьу vafious levels of authotities, which hаче the authotity
to impose Sevefe fines, penalties, and intetest charges. А tax yeat genemlly remains open for revieuz Ьу
the tax authorities duting the fiче subsequent years.

All these citcumstanceý mау cfeate tax risks in the Republic оf UzbeКstan that afe mofe significant than
in othet countries. Management believes that it has ptovided adequately for tax liabilities based оп its
intetptetations of аррliсаые uzbeНstan tax legislation, ofгrcial pfonouncements and couft decisions.
Howevef, the inteцpretations оf the tax authotities and coufts, especially due to refotm of the supfeme
coufts that ate tesolving tax disputes, could differ and thе effect оп these fi.nancial statements, if the
authorities wefe successful in enfotcing theit interptetations, could Ье significant.

Accordingly, at 31 December 2024 no provision for potential tax liabilities was fecofded (31 December
202з: по ptovision). Тhе Соmрапу estimates йаt it has no potential obligations ftom exposufe to othef
than temote tax risks (31 Decemb er 202З: по obЦgations).

Capital expenditute commitments. Тhе Company had по matedal commitments for capital expenditutes
outstanding as at 31 December 2024.

compliance with covenants. In accotdance йth loan agfeements йth foteip Гrпапсiаl institutions
Asian Development Bank (ADB), Eutopean Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) and
AGRIF cooPERATIF U.A., the Company is obligated to comply йth cettain financial covenants
based on йе Гrпапсiаl statements prepated in accordance йth IFRS.

As at 31 December 2024, tbe Соmрапу makes а Sepafate calculation fot compliance чzith the above
financial covenants.
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26 Fair value disclosrrres

Fait value measufements are analyzed Ьу level in the fаit value hiеtаrсhу as follows: (i) level опе are
measufements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fot identical assets ot liabilities, (ii) level
Мо measutements afe valuations techniques wiй all matetial inputs оЬsеrчаЫе for the asset of liability,
either d}есф (that is, as prices) or inditectly (that is, detived Гrоm prices), and (iф level three
measurements ate valuations not based on оЬsеrчаЫе market data (that is, unobsetwable inputs).
Management appl-ies 1udgement in categorizing financial instrrrments using the fait чаluе hietarchy. If а
fаit value measufement uses оьsеrwаые inputs that requfte significant adjustment, that measurement is а
Level 3 measufement. Тhе significance of а valuation input is assessed against the fait value
measurement in its епЙегу.

Garrying Carrying
Level 2 Level 3 value Level 2 Level 3 ча!чеUzS,k UzS,k UzS,k UsD,k USD,k USD,k

АssеЬ
Cash and cash equivalents 7,972,393
Lease receivables
оthеr financial assets

- 7,972,393 617
- 819,248,438 819,248,438
- 27,о11,513 27,о11,513

- в17
63,407 63,407

2,091 2,091
Total fanancial aSSeъ 7,972,393 846,259,951 854,232,344 бlб 65,498 66,.| l5
Liabilities
Borrowings
Тrаdе payables
оthеr fi папсiаl liabilities

- 635,859,266 635,859,266
- 8,568,721 8,568,721
_ 13,128,608 13,128,608

49,213 49,21з
663 663

,|,016 ,1,016

Total financial liabilities 657,556,595 657,556,595 50.893

Fait values ana|yzed Ьу level in the fait чаluе hietarchy and carrying value оf assets and liabilitres not
measured at fair чаluе at 31 December 2023 ate as follows:

Level 2
UzS,k

Level 3
UzS,k

Саrryiпg
value
UzS,k

Level 2
USD,k

Carrying
Level 3 value

Cash and cash equivalents 2,918,914
Lease receivables
оthеr financial assets

- 2,918,914 226
- 694,999,474 694,999,474
_ 16"134,083 16,134,083

USD,k

- 226
53,791 53,791
1,249 1,249

Assets

Totalfinancialasseъ 2,918,914 711,133,557 714,052,47'1 226 55,0з9 55,265
Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
other fi nancial liabilities 906,784 906,784

Total fiпапсiql liabilities , 737,609,180 737,609,180 _ 57,о88 57.о88

Тhе fair values in level 2 and level 3 оf fait value hietarchy were estimated using the discounted cash
flows valuation technique. Тhе fair чаluе оf floating tate insffuments that are not quoted in an active
matket was estimated to Ье equal to tl-reit саrфпg amount. Тhе fait value оf unquoted fixed intefest fate
instruments was estimated based on estimated futute cash flочzs expected to Ье teceived discounted at
cutfent interest fates fot new insttuments чzith similar ctedit tisk and remaining matutity.

- 707,о77,332 7о7,077,332
- 29,625,064 29,625,064

- 54,725
- 2,293
-70

54,725
2,293
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2Т Related раЁу Ьаlапсеs and transactions

|attt91 are generally consideted to Ье related if the parties are under colnmon control, ot опе рмý hаs
the ability to conftol йе other patty of can exefcise signi{icant influence or 1oint conftol over йе othet
pafty in making financial and operational decisions. In considering еасh possiЫe telated раtу
relationship, attention is dftected to the substance оf thе telationship, not merely the legal fоrm.

National Bank оf UzbeНstan and Uzbek-oman Investment Соmрапу LLC afe govefnment-owned
entities that have 45.5о/о апd 44.1,о/о of tbe shates and voting dghts of the Company respecUvely and йis
ownership allows the Gowernment а significant influence ovef the Соmрапу. Тhе Company's
transacdons with entities that are either conftolled ot jolntly conftolled Ьу йе Government afe not
significant. Тhе Соmрапу applies the exemption rn IAS 24 Related party disclosutes that allows to
present reduced related party disclosutes regatding transactions with govetnment-related entities,

At 31 December 2024, Йе outstanding balances йth telated parties weIe as follows:

shareholders
Кеу Management

реrsоппеl
UzS,k USD,k

34

Cash and cash equivalents
Grоss аmочпt of lоапs to employees
Воrrоwiпgs

7,730,200

193,693,151

598

14,991
441,72;

Воrrоwiпgs

At 31 Decembet 202З, Йе outstanding balances йth telated patties wefe as follows:

Кеу Management
Shareholders_ personnel

Grоss amount of loans to employees 1 ,171 ,25О 9.1

200,119,012 15,489

Тhе income and expense items with related patties for 2О24 wefe as follows:

Supervisory Кеу Management
shareholders Board реrsоппеI

lnterest income оп loans to employees
Мапаgеmепt salaries
Supeгvisory board rеmчпеrаtiоп

- - -.]ii,];?,iз
501,533 39

4-1,081,5,1б

Тhе income and expense items witlr telated patties fоt 202З wefe as follows:

shareholders
Supervisory Кеу Management

воаrd реrsоппеl

lnterest income оп lоапs to
еmрlоуееs
Management sаlаriеs
Supervisory board rеmчпеrаtiоп

- 181,164 14

- - 752Js; 5; 
3'З00'716 255-

_
Commission fees charged Ьу NBU 723,158 56
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28 Management of capita!

тhе company's objectiveý ч/hеп managing capital ate to safeguard the company's abiJity to continue as
а going conceffl in otder to provide fetufns fot shareholdets and benefits fot other stakeholdets and to
maintain an optimal capital Stfuctufe to teduce the cost of capital. In otder to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Соmрапу may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, fеtцm capital
to shareholders, issue new shшеs ot sell aSSetS to teduce deh. Тhе amount of capital that the Соmрапу
managed as of 31 December 2024 wаs IJZS 297,257,788 thousand /USD 2З,О07 thousand QO23: UZ|
278,280,024 thousand /USD 21,,539 thousand).

29 Events after the end of reporting peraod

Thete hаvе Ьееп no significant eventý in thе petiod after the repotting date and up to the time of
siping йе financial fepoft йat could have а signiГrcant impact on the financial position or petfotmance
оf the Соmрапу.

Approved and srgned on Ьеhаlf оf the Company's management:
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